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L Acronyms, Abbreviations and Glossary of Terms

A: Acronyms end Abbreviations

ASK

BCH

CBD

CEO

CBK

CSR

ECL

EDMS

ERP

FAQ

FY

ICPAK

IFPRI

IPSAS

LLP

NBA

NACOSTI

NT

OAG

OSHA

PFM

PPE

PSASB

PPAD

SAGAs

SC

WB

WIBA

YAGPO

Agricultural Society of Kenya

Biosafety Clearing House

Convention on Biological Diversity

Chief Executive Officer

Central Bank of Kenya

Corporate Social Responsibility

Expected Credit Loss

Electronic Data Management System

Electronic Resource Process

Frequently Asked Questions

Financial Year

Institute ofCertified Public Accountants of Kenya

Intemational Food Policy Research Institute

International Public Sector Accounting Standards

Low Level Presence

National B iosafety Authority

National Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation

National Treasury

oflice of the Auditor General

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007

Public Finance Management

Property Plant & Equipment

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Public Procurement Asset & Disposal Act

Semi-Autonomous Govemment Agencies

State Corporations

World Bank

Work Injury Benefit Act

Youth Access to Govemment Procurement Opportunities
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B: GlossarT of Terms

Fiduciary Management- Members of Managoment directly entrusted with the responsibility of
financial resources of tle organisation

Compamtlve Yeer- Means thc prior period.

lll



NATIONAL BIOSAFETY AUTHORITY
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

2, Key Entity Information and Management

(a) Backgroundinformation

National Biosafety Authorily (NBA) was established pursuant to the provisions ofthe Biosafety

Act No. 2, 2009 and became fully operational in 2010. The Authority is headed by a Board of

Directors responsible for the general policy and strategic direction of the Authority. The

ministerial responsibility is vested on the Cabinet Secretaries for Ministry responsible for

Science and Technology as per the Biosafety Act No. 2 of2009, and Ministry of Agriculture,

Livestock and Fisheries as provided for in the Executive Order No. I of 20 I 8. Executive Order

No. I of 2018 (Revised), vested Ministerial responsibility on the Cabinet Secretary for Ministry

of Education. The day to day Management of the Authority is carried out by a Management

Team headed by the ChiefExecutive Officer.

NBA has made great strides in establishing strong biosafety framework in Kenya by developing

and publishing the following Biosafety Regulations:

i. The Biosafety (Environmental Release) Regulations,20l I

ii. The B iosafety(lmport, Export and Transit) Regulations,20l I

iii. The Biosafety( Contained Use) Regulations,2Ol I

iv. TheBiosafety(Labelling)Regulations,20l2

These regulations lay a clear procedure on handling GMOs whether plants, animals or micro-

organisms.

NBA is the National Focal Point for the Cartagena Protocol on Biosafety to the Convention on

Biological Diversity (CBD) and is mandated to implement the provisions of the Cartagena

Protocol on Biosafety matters pertaining to GMOs.

NBA is domiciled in Kenya and has border post offices in Mombasa, Namanga and Busia.

(b) PrincipalActivities

The mandate of the Authority is to exercise general supervision and control over the transfer.

handling and use of Genetically Modified Organisms with the aim of ensuring safety of human

and animal health, and provision ofan adequate level of protection ofthe environment.

The principal activities of the Authority are to;

a) Consider and determine applications for approval for the transfer, handling and use of

Genetically Modified Organisms and related activities;

lv
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b) Co-ordinate, monitor and assess activities relating to the safe transfer, handling and use of

Cenetically Modified Organisms in order to ensure that such activities do not have adverse

effect on human health and the environment;

c) Co-ordinate research and surveys in matters relating to the safe development, transfer,

handling and use of Genetically Modified Organisms, and to collect, collate and disseminate

information about the findings of such research, investigation or survey;

d) Identify national requirements for manpower development and capacity building in

biosafety;

e) Advise the Government on legislative and other measures relating to the safe transfer,

handling and use of Genetically Modified Organisms;

f) Promote awareness among the general public relating to biosafety; and

g) Establish and maintain a biosafety clearing house to serye as a means through which

information is made available to facilitate the exchange of scientific, technical,

environmental and legal information on, and experience with Genetically Modified

Organisms.

Our Vision

A World-Class Biosafety Agency

Our Mission

To ensure and assure safe development, transfer, handling and use of genetically modified

organisms.

Our Core Values

In pursuit ofour vision and mission, we shall be guided by the following fundamental core values;

o Good Governance and Integrity

o Professionalism

o Customer Focus

o Inclusiveness

(c) Key Management

The Board ofDirectors is the top organ that provides the overall oversight over the management

of the Authority. The Board of Directors include the following;
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Key Entity Information and Management (continued)

No. Name Designrtion Nature of Directorship

I Prof. Jenesio Kinvamario Chairman Non-Executive/lndependent

2 Mr. Archibald Munyi Member Non-Executive/lndependent

3 Dr. Daniel Njoroge Member Non-Executive/lndependent

4 Mr. Mohammed Hussein Member Non-Executive/lndependent

5 Dr. Roselida Owuor Member Altemate Member

6 Dr. Oscar Magenya Member Alternate Member

7 Col. Susan Mutua Member Alternate Member

8 Ms. Caroline Mweni Member Alternate Member

9 Dr. Roy B. Mugiira Chief Executive Officer Ex-officio Member

The NBA is headed by the ChiefExecutive Officer, who ensures effective and efficient management

ofthe Authority's day-to-day operations. The CEO is assisted by the following six Directorates:

[. Directorate of Corporate Services:

2. Directorate ofLegal Serv ices/Corporation Secretary;
3. lnternal Audit and Risk Assurancel
4. Corporate Strategy and Planning; and
5. Biosafety and Biotechnology Development;
6. Biosafety Research and Compliance;

(d) FiduciaryManagement

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June 2023

and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

ol

I Chief Executive Officer Dr. Roy B. Mugiira

2 Director Corporate Services FA. Ann N. Karimi

J
Corporation Secretary & Director

Legal Services
CS. Moses L. Sande

Josphat Muchiri4 Deputy Director Technical Services
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lo
(e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

The Key fiduciary oversight arrangements include: -

The Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors plays a crucial role in overseeing the management ofthe Authority. It

is structured into committees that closely examine various aspects of the Authority's operations

and provide regular reports to the full Board. These committees include:

i. Audit Committee: This committee is responsible for reviewing the activities of the

Authority's management to ensure they align with the Authority's policies, government

directives, and legal provisions. lts primary focus is on oversight.

ii. Finance and Administration Committee: This committee scrutinizes the activities

of the management to ensure they adhere to principles of financial prudence and

administrative effi ciency.

iii. Technical Committee: The Technical Committee assesses the management's

activities related to the implementation of the Authority's core mandate. Its main goal

is to ensure that these activities align with the provisions of the Biosafety Act and

relevant international conventions on Biosafetv matters.

The office of the Auditor General.

The Office of the Auditor General evaluates the Authority's Financial Statements and provides an

assessment ofthe current situation. This includes conducting a system audit to assess the effectiveness

of internal controls. The Auditor General also offers recommendations regarding the sufficiency of

the existing internal control systems.

Parliamentary Oversight Committees:

o Public Investment Committee - reviews the Auditor General's reports and seeks further

explanations from Management on any adverse reports with recommendations to Parliament

for adoption and action by the Executive.

. Education, Science and Technology Committee - Interrogates the performance of the

Authority on matters of Science and Technology.

o Agricultural Committee - Interested on role of the Authority in agricultural biotechnology

regulation and provision ofbudgetary resources to support the Authority.

. Health Committee - Interested on role of the Authority in promoting public health through

biosafety regulations on the safety of Genetically Modified Organisms.

vtl
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Development Partners

They review the Management activities and reports in regard to the sponsored projects to ensure

compliance with the agreement conditions.

ol

National Biosafety Authority Headquarters

P.O. Box 28251

NACOSTI Building

Loresho-Off Waiyaki Way

Nairobi, KENYA

National Biosafety Authority Contacts

Telephone : (25 4) 20267 I 667

E-mail : ceo@biosafetykenya.go.ke

Website: www.biosafe ke

National Biosafety Authority Bankers

Central Bank of Kenya

Haile Selassie Avenue

P.O. Box 60000

City Square 00200

NAIROBI, KENYA

Kenya Commercial Bank

Kipande House Branch

Kenyatta Avenue

P. O. Box 30012-00100

NAIROBI, KENYA

Cooperative Bank of Kenya

Westlands Branch

P. O. Box 66589-00800

NAIROBI, KENYA

NCBA Bank

Westlands Branch

P. O. Box 44599-00100

NAIROBI, KENYA

Independent Auditor

Auditor-Ceneral

Office of the Auditor General

Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084

cPo 00 100

Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Legal Adviser

The Attomey General

State Law Office and Department of

Justice

Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 401l2

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya
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lo 3, The Board of Directors

Prof. Jenesio Kinyamario

PhD (Nairobi), Msc (Texas A&M), Bsc (Nairobi)
Chairman Board of Directors

D.O.B: 0I/01/1952

Prof. Kinyamario holds a PhD in Plant Ecology from the University of Nairobi, a Master's
degree in Range Management from Texas A&M University in the USA and a Bachelor's
degree in Botany and Zoology from the University of Nairobi. He is a full Professor (now
retired) ofthe University of Nairobi.
Besides his academic and research work, Prof. Kinyamario offers consultancy services to
various organizations such as the World Bank, the United Nations Environment
Programme and the Kenya Govemment on environmental issues. He is also a Fellow of
the World Innovation Foundation and a Member of the Environmental Institute of Kenya.

He has previously served as a member ofthe Board ofthe Coffee Research Foundation,

Moi University Council, Rivatex EA Ltd, and Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital.
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ol

Mr. Archibald Munyi,
Bachelor of Law, LL.B
Board Member

D.O.B: l9107/198r
Mr. Archibald Munyi is an Advocate of
the High Court ofKenya, a
Commissioner for Oaths and a Notary
Public with over l3 years ofexperience
in civil and commercial practice.He

holds a Bachelor ofLaws degree from

the University of Nairobi and a post

graduate diploma in law from the Kenya

School of Law.

He is a member of the Law Society of
Kenya and the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators (London).

He is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee

Dr. Daniel Njoroge
Board Member

D.O.B: 3l/12l1954

Dr. Daniel Njoroge is a registered pharmacist

with over 40 years' experience in both

Govemment and Private Practice in
Community Pharmacy.

He holds a bachelor of Pharmacy from the

University of Nairobi and a postgraduate

diploma in community Pharmacy.

He is a member of Pharmaceutical Society of
Kenya (PSK).

He has been involved with resource

mobilization globally with International funds

managers.

He is a member of Finance &Administration
Committee and Technical Committee.
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Mohamed Haji Hussein

Board Member
D.O.B: 1958

Mr. Mohamed Haji Hussein holds a

Diploma in Clinical Medicine and a
Higher Diploma in Ophthalmology with
44 years' experience in medical practice.

He served in the Ministry of Health as a

clinician for l0 years and in private
practice for 34 years.

He also served as a Director with the
National Housing Corporation (NHC).
He is a member of Audit Committee and

Technical Committee.

Dr. Roselida Owuor
PhD, Cell and Molecular Biology
Rep of PS Higher Education and Research

D.O.B: l3/06/1968
Dr. Roselida Owuor holds a PhD in Cell and

Molecular Biology from Maseno University
and MSc. in Reproductive Biology and Cellular
and Applied Physiology from the University of
Nairobi.
Dr. Owuor is a Deputy Director of Research,

Science and Technology in the State

Department for Higher Education and

Research, Ministry of Education.
Dr. Owuor has served at Senior Management
Positions in Public and Private Sector for a

period of more than eighteen years. She is the

chair of the Board Technical Committee and a

member of the board Audit Committee.

xt



NATIONAL BIOSAFETY AUTHORITY
Annual Reports and Financial Ststements
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Dr. Oscar Magenya
PhD Agricultural Entomology
Rep of PS Crops Development
D.O.Bt 0610111965

Dr. Oscar E.V. Magenya holds a PhD in

lnsect-Viral-Environmental interactions

from Wageningen University, The

Netherlands and Post-Doctoral work at

ICIPE on insect science; MSc in
Agricultural Entomology from Kenyatta

University. He is an agro-developmental

specialist currently working as Director
of Research and Innovation, Ministry of
Agriculture and Livestock Development.

Previously, Dr. Magenya was a Chief
Research Administrator at the Kenya

Agricultural Research Institute.

He is a member of the Finance and

Administration Committee and the

Technical Committee.

Ms. Caroline Mweni
MA in Economics and Policy Management
Rep of PS National Treasury
D.0.B:19/03/1988

Ms. Caroline Mweni is an Economist with over
I I years experience in Economic Policy and

Public Finance Management. She holds a

Bachelor of Science degree in Economics and

Mathematics from the Kabarak University and

a Master of Arts Degree in Economics and

Policy Management from the University of
Nairobi. She is also a member of the Economist

Society of Kenya.

She has been engaged in resource mobilization
and negotiations for extemally financed

programmes and projects with Multilateral and

Bilateral Agencies on behalf of the

Government of Kenya.

She is the chair of the Finance and

Administration Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee.

ol
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l.

Dr. Roy B. Mugiira
Chief Executive Officer

D.O.B:25l05/1969
Dr. Roy B. Mugiira is the Chief Executive Officer.
He holds a Ph.D in the diagnosis of plant viral infections based on the alignment of their
DNA sequences. He has research experience in the cloning of viral DNA genomes into
gene silencing vectors for application in functional genomics.

Dr. Mugiira played a key role in the development of Kenya's Biotechnology Development
Policy and the Biosafety regulatory framework for Genetically Modified Organisms. He is

the National Focal Point for the Cartagena Protocol on Biosafety.

Dr. Mugiira has a wide experience in policy advisory for the govemance of Science,

Technology and Innovation (ST&l) generally and Biotechnology Development

specifically.

xllt



NATIONAL BIOSAF'ETY AUTHORITY
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30,2023.

l. Key Management Team ,I

Dr. Roy B. Mugiira
Chief Executive Officer
D.O.B:25l05/1969

Dr. Roy B. Mugiira is the Chief Executive Officer.
He holds a Ph.D in the diagnosis of plant viral infections based on the alignment of their

DNA sequences. He has research experience in the cloning of viral DNA genomes into

gene silencing vectors for application in functional genomics.

Dr. Mugiira played a key role in the development of Kenya's Biotechnology Development

Policy and the Biosafety regulatory framework for Genetically Modified Organisms. He is

the National Focal Point for the Cartagena Protocol on Biosafety.

Dr. Mugiira has a wide experience in policy advisory for the govemance of Science,

Technology and Innovation (ST&l) generally and Biotechnology Development

specifically.

CS. Moses Lukale Sande
FA. Ann N. Karimi

Director, Corporate Services
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Corporation Secretary & Director
Legal Services
D.O.B:2210311973

CS. Moses Lukale Sande is an advocate

of the High Court of Kenya of over Ten
( l0) years, a Certified Secretary ofKenya
and a member of the lnstitute of Certified
Secretaries ol Kenya (ICSK) in good

standing and a member of the Latv

Society of Kenya (LSK). He holds a

Bachelor of Laws degree (LL. B) from
the University of Nairobi, a post-

graduate Diploma in law from the Kenya

School of Law; and a Master of Laws

degree (LL.M) in International Criminal
Justice and Armed Conflict liom the

University of Nottingham, United
Kingdom.

Mr. Josphat Muchiri
Deputy Director Technical Services
D.O.B:21109/1975

Mr. Josphat Muchiri is the Deputy Director Technical
Services, National Biosafety Authority. He holds a
Bachelor Degree in Agriculture from the University
of Nairobi, a Master's Degree in Horticulture fiom
the University of Nairobi and M.Sc. Biosafety in
Plant Biotechnology lrom Marche Polytechnic

Unive rsity, Italy.
He is currently in-charge of Technical Services

Directorate, in an acting capacity, mandated to

implement the core mandate of the Authority. He is

lo D.O.B: l5/09/1982
Ms. Ann N. Karimi is a qualified Financial

Analyst rvith over fifteen years ofexperience in

Pensions, Investments, Finance,

Adrninistration and the Asset Management
Industry across various sectors. She is currently
pursuing a Doctor of Philosophy in Business

Adrn inistration. She holds a Master of Finance

Degree from the University of Nairobi and a

Bachelor's of Sciencc Degree in International
Business Administration (lBA) lrorn United
States Inrernational University (USIU). She is

a Full nrember of the Institute of Certified
Financial Analysts (ICIFA) and the Chartered

Institute for Securities and Investments (CISI).
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elalso the National Focal Point to the Biosafety

Clearing House (BCH) as well as the Emergency

Contacts person to the Cartagena Protocol on

Biosafety.

l

I

xvl



NATIONAL BIOSAFETY AUTHORITY
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30,2023.

l. 5, Chairman'sStatement

The NBA Board of Directors presents the 2022123 Annual Financial

Statement Report. During the year, NBA focused its activities

towards the Govemment's economic blueprints, which are the

Vision 2030, the Big 4 Agenda, the Bottom-up Economic

Transformation Agenda (BeTA) and Africa Union Agenda 2063 on

food security, industrialization, climate change and manufacturing.

Through implementing its 2020- 2025 Strategic Plan, the Authority

contributed significantly to the regulation of research and

commercial activities involving GMOs with a view to ensuring the safety of human and animal health

and the provision ofan adequate level ofprotection ofthe environment.

In the financial year 2022123, the Authority was transferred from the Ministry of Education to the

Ministry of Agriculture and Livestock Development through Executive Order Number I of 2023.

This move has revitalized the regulation and application ofmodern agricultural biotechnology while

reinforcing the Authority's role in enhancing agricultural productivity and ensuring food security and

nutrition and economic growth.

The approval ofvarious agricultural based biotechnologies which include Bt Cotton, Bt Maize as well

as virus resistant cassava are geared towards enhancing agricultural productivity and economic

growth in the country, leading to the realization ofBeTA.

To ensure that these biotechnologies are implemented seamlessly, inFY 2022/23, NBA harmonized

two biosafety guidelines: the coexistence of GMO and non-GMO crops and LLP/AP guidelines to

support the biosafety regulatory systems. A number of other policies on GMOs and emerging

biotechnologies have also been developed to support the Biosafety regulatory systems.

The Authority has ensured robust systems and processes are implemented to facilitate trade through

the timely processing of GMO-Free Certificates, issuance of No objection letters to importers, and

online cargo clearance at entry points through the KENTRADE online system. The operationalization

ofthe TradeNet System has facilitated online applications, approval of import, and export/transit of

Genetically Modified Organisms and their derived products as per the underlying NBA approval

xvll
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guidelines. This has created efficiency in service delivery and enhanced NBA collection of

Appropriation in Aid (A-in-A).

Despite the achievements NBA has made over the past one year, it continues to face a number of

challenges. During the financial year 2022123, the Government lifted the ten-year ban on GMO and

their derived products, however, the Government decision was challenged in court and conservatory

orders issued against the implementation ofthe decision. This state of affairs continues to affect the

operations of the Authority adversely as it is unable to fully implement its mandate.

Further, misinformation from external influences and a lack of solid knowledge about GMO

technology among the public have compounded the Authority's ability to deliver on its mandate as it

has faced a significant challenge in creating biosafety awareness and public education to the Kenyan

public. The Authority however continues with its public engagement in ensuring that the

development, transfer, use and utilization of Genetically Modified Organisms and other technologies

is an integral part ofbiosafety decision-making processes. Some ofthe methodologies the Authority

has used to reach the public include the Annual Biosafety Conferences, showcasing ofthe Authority's

mandate in Agricultural Trade Fairs and Infomercials, development and distribution of information

communication materials and posting of biosafety information in the Biosafety Clearing House

(BCH).

The challenges notwithstanding, the Authority remains focussed on the delivery of its mandate. This

can only be achieved through team work and I wish to extend my gratitude to the Board and Staffof

NBA for their continued dedication to service delivery. Additionally, I express my appreciation to the

Ministries of Education and Agriculture and Livestock Development for the support they gave the

Authority for the year under review. Lastly, I commend our partners for their technical and financial

support during the financial year.

PROF. JENESIO KINYAMARIO
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
NATIONAL BIOSAFETY AUTHOR]TY

ot
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t, 6. Report ofthe Chief Executive Officer

I am pleased to present the Annual Repo( and Financial Statements
of the National Biosafety Authority (NBA) for FY 2022/2023. This
report has been prepared in conformity with Sections 8l(1,2,3,4) of
the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and in accordance with
the Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) cash basis, which
requires the Accounting Officer for a Nalional Govemment entity to
prepare financial statements in respect ofthe entity.

This report provides information on the National Biosafety
Authority's (NBA) key achievements, structure, and budget
performance against actual amounts for the current and prior year. It

also presents information on the total annual exchequer issues and annual expenditures on recurent
activities.

Finally, the report provides information on emerging issues and discusses the challenges that
hampered the effective implementation and realisation ofthe set activities and objectives. The report
also provides some recommendations for dealing with the identified challenges. I thank the NBA
Board of Directors for steering the Authority in the achievements that are reported herein, the
Management Team for dedication to duty towards execution ofour mandate and our key stakeholders
for a great collaboration and partnership.

I hope that as we continue to discharge our mandate of exercising general supervision and control
over the transfer, handling and use of Cenetically Modified Organisms, in collaboration with our
stakeholders and members of the public, we will realize significant milestones in ensuring safety of
human and animal health and the provision ofan adequate level ofprotection ofthe environment.

"-(

DR. ROY B. MUGIIRA, Ph.D, MRSB
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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7. Statement of Performance against Predetermined Objectives for FY 202212023

The National Biosafety Authority has five strategic pillars and objectives within the curent Strategic

Plan for the Financial Year 2020- 2025. These strategic pillars are as follows:

Pillar 1: Biosafety management system.

Pillar 2: Legal and Regulatory Frameworks.

Pilhr 3: Knowledge management and corporate branding.

Pillar 4: Partnership, Linkages and collaborations.

Pillar 5: Institutional capacity and resource mobilization.

NBA develops its annual work plans based on the above five pillars. Assessment of the Board's

performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The Authority achieved its

performance targets set for the Financial Year 2022-2023 period for its five strategic pillars, as

indicated in table I below:

Table 1: Strategic Pillars and objectives within the Strategic Plan 2020-2025

No. of Cuidelines -Hold public

]t

Biosafety

Mrnagement

System

To cany out

risk

assessment

and socio-

economic

impact

assessments of

Genetically

Modified

Organisms.

collect views

and validate

Guidelines

Authority held two public

engagement forums

3 Guidelines approved

namely;

- Food/Feed

assessment Guidelines

developed/reviewed i participation

I forr., to

safety

-No

pproved

Guidelines

use

a

of

for

- Environmental risk

assessment Guidelines

- Harmonized Guidelines for

Low Level Presence and Co-

existence.

iApplications
I

j received an

% of GMO Screening

GMO

d risk Applications

100% of GMO Applications

received during the

reporting period were

xx
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l.

To enhance

compliance

and

enforcemcnt

capacitics on

biosafcty.

% of ongoing GMO

projccts undcr

contained usc

monitorcd

asscssmenl

conducted Conduaing risk

assGsment of

GMO

Applic*ions

Communicating

of GMO

Applications

decisions

scrccncd, risk assessmcnt

conductcd and dccisions and

communicatcd in a timely

msnner to Applicants

Conduct

monitoring

and inspection

ofcontained usc

GMO Projects.

100% of ongoing GMO

Projects Monitored

No of GMO

Facilities inspcaed

and ccrtificd

Conduct

inspection of
GMO Facilitics

Compilc and

communicste

Inspcction

Rcports to

Applicants

5 GMO Facilitics inspccled (

KU, ILRI, KALRO, ICIPE

and JKUAT)

Numbcr of Counties

gowing Bt cotton

monitored for

compliancc to

biosafcty laws

Conducl

monitoring of

Bt cotton whcre

its

commercialized

Post commcrcialization

monitoring was conducted

in l9 counties including

Kisumu, Homabay,

Machakos, Embu, Mombasa

growing Bt cotton variaics

No of countics

markct surveycd

Conduct GMO

market

surveillance,

Markct survcillancc was

done in 36 Counties

including Nairobi, Kiambu,

Machakos, Kakamega,

Mombasa, Garissa, Uasin

Gichu.
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No ofsamples tested Tesling of

surveillance

regulatory

samples and

priYate samples

50 samples were tested for

GMO Presence.
oI

2. Legsl and

Rcgulltory

Fmmeworks

To serve as a

regional

Centre of

Excellence on

biosafety

management.

To review the

legal and

regulatory

framework on

biosafety.

No. of registered

Institutional

Biosafety

Committees (lBCs)

7o of completion of

CMO Molecular

Reference

laboratory

National

Regional

Centre

BCH

No. of reviewed

Policies, laws

Registration of

IBCs.

3 IBCs registered (ILRI

uoN, rcrPE)

Opening of a

molecular GMO

Establish 
^

national and a

regional center

on BCH

Identiry areas of

review

-Acquisition of Land

establish a Regi

Molecular lab started

to

aon

ry

ng

o

esti

borat

T

a

and

Hold public

participation

forums to

collect views

Review of

Biosafety Act

of

-GMO testing lab

opcrationalized awaiting

commissioning to a Centre

ofExcellence

National BCH established

Areas of possible review of

Biosafety Act identified

including emerging

biotechnologies,

membership of the Board,

Regulations on Labelling

and Transport, Storage and

Packaging

fetsa

Rev

B o

lations

To advice the

Govemment

on biosafety

No of

briefs io
advisorv I Draft.\

various i briefs

policy ovemment Advisory

Briefs done on;

Gazeltement of Biosalety
Inspectors as required by lhe

on

Govemment

Departments

vanous

licy issues
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b on

issues

biosafety

and

3. Knowledgc

mrtragemetrt

slld corporste

brrtrdiDg,

To enhance

Knowledge

Man8gement

framework.

7o of developing an

information

management syslem

7o completion of

Biossfety

Communication

Slrategy

No. of biosafety

awarcness programs

emergrng

biorechnologies

Maintain the

ERP system

Develop an

EDMS

Develop a

Biosafety

Communication

Strategy

Sensitizalion on

Biosafety

Regulatory

framework

L{ting o/ the ban on GM
lood imports

Low-kvel Presence (LLP)
Silualions of OMO products
in imporled consignments.

lmport of raw malerials lor
Aninalleeds

Levies, Fees and Charges by
the National Biosafety
Aut hority Io r Har m o nizalio n
by the fost African
Community,

Draft Food and Feed Safety
Control Coordination Bill,
202 3

ERP system maintained

-EDMS pending due to

budgetary constraints

Biosafety Communication

Srategy developed awaiting

validation by stakeholdcrs

Sensitized High-Level

Policy Makers, Lawyers,

CEOS of Regulatory

Agencies on Biosafety

Regulalory Framework.

Held ll6 Annual Biosafety

Conference.

Panicipatcd in various ASK

Trade Fairs

Developed and distributed

biosafety brochures and

FAQs on GMOs.

To promole

public

awareness and

public

panicipation

on biosafety.
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T
Held County awareness fora

on biosafety matters in

Counties including Nakuru,

Busia, Mombasa, Kisumu,

Garissa, Embu, Transzoia,

Kaj iado

To enhance

visibility and

corporate

image.

To enhance

synergies

through

collaboration

with

stakeholders

and partners.

No of updates in the

website

Website updates Website regularly updated

Sustaining aNo of social media

engagement

Several active social media

engagementsntbra

social Media

I

t-
presence

7o completion of

Branding Policy

No of CSR activities

No

collaborations,

agreements,

pannerships

Branding Policy

developed

CSR activities

conducted

organizations

Draft Policy developed

Several CSR actiYities held

aimed at tree planting

initiatives, cleaning of the

environment

Negotiated and partnered

with various organizations

including USAID/PBS,

AUDA NEPAD, Alliance

for Science, ISAAA, AATF,

NRF.

Portncrship,

Linkages and

collsboratiotrs

5. Institutionsl

caprcity 8trd

resourcc

mobilizstion,

I

4 of got

ern

e

art

N

P

ate and

with

I

I

I

I

T
I

I

I

I

To slrengthen

linkages with

partners and

compliance

with

intemational

obligations.

infrastructure

capacities.

No of enSagements

on CBD and

Cartagena Protocol

No. of reviewed HR

instruments

(organogram, HR

career progression,

staff establishment).

Participate in

COP MOP

biosafety data in

the BCH

to .euie.r- Un

instruments.

Car loan and

NBA panicipated in the 156

COP MOP Meeting in

Montreal, Canada.

All relevant biosafety

information published in the

BCH

oped HR instruments

Operationalized the car loan

and mortgage scheme

Meet gsn

ishPubl

gaSe

e

hanceenTo

danstaff

I

l

I

mon

schem
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Dcvelopcd succcssion

managcmcnt policy

To mobilizc,

optimally

allocate and

prudently

utiliz.

financial

rcsouroes.

No. of pmposals

developcd

Dcvclop

funding

proposals.

l7 proposals dcvclopcd and

submitted to various

dcvelopmcnt partncrs

To improve

quality

management

and good

corporatc

govemance

systems.

No. of ISO Audits

conductcd

No of Managcment

revicw mectings

hels

Pafiicipate in

cxtcmal

surveillancc

audits

Conduct

intcmal audits

Hold

Management

rcvicw mectings

One survcillancc audit by

KEBs conduacd

2 intcmal audits mnductcd

2 management revicw

meetings held
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8. Corporate Governance Statement

8.1 Overview

The National Biosafety Authority (NBA) is established under the Biosafety Act,2009. The Authority

is established to exercise general supervision and control over the transfer, handling and use of

genetically modified organisms with the aim of ensuring;

a. Safety ofhuman and animal health; and

b. Provision ofan adequate level of protection ofthe environment.

The Board of Directors of the Authority has adopted high standards of corporate governance and

applies strict rules ofconduct based on best practice. As part of this commitment, the Board adheres

to good corporate govemance by embracing the following principles-

a. To observe high standards ofethical and moral behavior;

b. To act in the best interest ofthe Authority;

c. To remunerate and promote fairly, prudently and responsibly;

d. To recognize the legitimate interests ofall stakeholders; and

e. To ensure that the Authority acts as a good corporate citizen.

In line with Section 3 of the Leadership and Integrity Act No. l9 of 2012, the Board respects the

values, principles and the requirements of the Constitution, including-

a. The national values and principles provided for under Article l0 ofthe Constitution;

b. The rights and fundamental freedoms provided for under Chapter Four ofthe Constitution;

c. The responsibilities of leadership provided for under Chapter 6 ofthe Constitution;

d. The principles governing the conduct of State officers provided for under Article 75 ofthe

Constitution; and

e. The values and principles of Public Service as provided for under Article 232 of the

Constitution.

8.2 Board Size, Composition, Appointment of Members and Succession PIan

The Board provides strategic direction, exercises control and remains accountable through effective

leadership, enterprise, integrity and good judgment. It is diverse in its composition, independent but

flexible, pragmatic, objective and focused on balanced and sustainable performance ofthe Authority.

The Cabinet Secretary responsible for Crops Development selects and appoints Board members for a

period ofthree (3) years and are eligible for reappointment for one more term ofthree (3) years. The

renewal of a Member's tenure for a second term is subject to an acceptable evaluation as determined

during Board evaluations. The Cabinet Secretary has staggered Board appointments to ensure that the

respective expiry dates of the members terms fall at different time to ensure continuity. The
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appointment of independent Directors is by name and by notice in the Kenya Cazene. Membership

of the Board may cease if the Board member-

a. Serves the appointing authority with a written notice ofresignation;

b. Is absent, without the permission ofthe Chairperson, from three consecutive meetings;

c. Is convicted ofan offence and sentenced to imprisonment for a term exceeding six months or

to a fine exceeding twenty thousand shillings;

d. [s incapacitated by prolonged physical or mental illness from performing his duties as a

member of the Board; or

e. Conducts himself in a manner deemed by the appointing authority to be inconsistent with

membership the Board.

The Board is composed of eight members who possess broad range of expertise and diverse

professional background. The members are drawn from various ministries, public and private sectors.

Their remuneration is based on Cuidelines on Terms and Conditions of Service for State Corporations

dated 23 November 2004. These guidelines clearly stipulate remuneration elements such as taxable

sitting allowances for meetings attended, travel and accommodation allowance while on Corporation

duty as well as the monthly honoraria for the Chairman. The Board of Directors' remuneration for

financial year 202212023 is presented in Note 12.

To effectively discharge its mandate, the Board has established three committees with specific terms

of reference. The committees are as follows-

a. TechnicalCommittee;

b. Finance and Administration Committee; and

c. Audit Committee.

The Board however remains collectively responsible for the decisions and actions taken by any of its

committees. A committee may only perform the tasks delegated to it by the Board and may not

exceed the authority or powers ofthe Board.

8.3 Number of Board meetings held and attendance by the members

The Board holds quarterly meetings while special meetings are called when deemed necessary.

During the Financial Year 202212023, the Board held four (4) full Board meetings, Eleven (ll)
Special Board meetings and Fourteen ( l4) Board Committee meetings. All meetings had quorum and

any member who absented him/herself from a meeting did so with the express authority of the

Chairperson.

The summary of the Board meetings is as indicated in Table 2 below:
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CI
Table 2: Board of Directors Meetings during FinancialYear 202212023

The Full Board held 4 Meetinps as follows

No. Name Attendance

I Dr. Joseph Chavutia 4

2 Mr. Archibald Munyi 4

-) Dr. Daniel Nioroge I

4 Mr. Mohamed Hussein I

5 Dr. Roselida Owuor 4

6 Dr. Oscar Magenya 4

7 Col. Susan Mutua J

8 Ms. Caroline Mweni 4

9 Dr. Roy Mugiira 4

The Special Full Board Meetings held 11 Meetings as follows

Prof.Jenesio Kinyamario 4
) Dr. Joseph Chavutia 7

J Mr. Archibald Munyi ll
4 Dr. Daniel Nioroge 5

5 Mr. Mohamed Hussein 5

6 Dr. Roselida Owuor 9

7 Dr. Oscar Maqenya ll
8 Col. Susan Mutua 7

9 Ms. Caroline Mweni 9

10. Dr. Roy Mugiira 9

NB: Prof. Jenesio Kinyamario took over from Dr. Joseph Chavulia os lhe Chairman duting
the 3'd Quorter ofthe 2022/2023 Financial year

The Technical Committee held 4 Meetings as follows:

Dr. Roselida Owuor 2
a Mr. Archibald Munyi 4

3 Dr. Oscar Magenya J

4 Col. Susan Mutua 4

The Finance & Administration Committee held 6 Meetings as follows:

I Ms. Caroline Mweni 6

2 Dr. Oscar Magenva 6

J Ms. Susan Mutua 5

4 Dr. Daniel Nioroqe
Audit Committee held 4 Meetings as follows:

I Mr. Archibald Munyi 4
.,

Dr. Roselida Owuor 4
3 Ms. Caroline Mweni 3
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8.4 Role and Functions of the Board

The role and functions of the Board are premised on the objects and functions of the Authority as

stipulated in the Biosafety Act. The Code ofgovernance for State Corporations - r1.1u, ongozo sets oul

the role and functions ofthe Board to include-

a. Determination of the Authority's mission, vision, purpose and core values;

b. Settingand overseeing the overall strategy and approving significant policiesofthe Authority;

c. Ensuring that the strategy ofthe organization is aligned to the long-term goals ofthe Authority

on sustainability so as not to compromise the ability of future generations to meet their own

needs:

d. Approving the Authority's organizational structure;

e. Approving the annual budget ofthe Authority;

f. Monitoring the Authority's performance and ensure sustainability;

g. Enhancing the corporate image ofthe Authority;

h. Ensuring availability ofadequate resources for the achievement ofthe Authority's objectives.

i. Hiring the CEO on such terms and conditions of service as may be approved by the relevant

government organ(s) and approve the appointment of senior management of the Authority;

and

j. Ensure effective communication with stakeholders.

8.5 Induction and Training
The Authority's Board undertakes regular training and skills development programs to enable the

fulfillment of its responsibilities. All Board members undergo an induction training on appointment

to enable them to understand more about the Authority, their role and ways ofworking.

8.6 Board and Member Performance and Evaluation
During the year, Board conducted a self-evaluation assessment facilitated by the State Corporations

Advisory Committee. During the review of the Evaluation Report, the Board and individual members

interrogated their performance and pointed out issues that required their attention.

8.7 Board Charter
A Board Charter was developed in the year in order to define the Board's roles and responsibilities

as well as functions, workplans and structures in a way that supports the members in carrying out

their strategic oversight function. The Charter has enabled members to think creatively and critically

about how their strategic and operational plans align with the Authority's strategic direction and
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expectations with respect to govemance. The Charter was adopted by the Board acting in accordance

with Wongozo, the Code of Govemance for State Corporations and other applicable Kenyan laws,

regulations and circulars that have been issued by the Government from time to time.

8.8 Governance Audit
Whilst the need and importance of govemance audit cannot be overemphasized, the Authority was

not able to conduct Covemance Audit during the year under review due to financial constraints.

Management however, continually monitored and ensured compliance with the legal requirements

and govemance principles as stipulated in Wongozo, the Code of Govemance for State Corporations

and other applicable Kenyan laws, regulations and circulars that have been issued by the Govemment

from time to time.

E.9 Register of Conflict of Interest
The Authority maintained a register ofconflict of interest for recording any declarations ofconflict

of interest made by Board members and employees of the Authority.

8.10 Code of Conduct and Ethics
The Authority continues to apply the approved Code of Conduct and Ethics that governs the general

conduct of public o{Iicers under the Leadership and Integrity Act No. l9 of 2012 and the staff have

subscribed their commitment to comply with the code. The Authority continues to inculcate these in

its personnel through its core values of Cood governance and Integrity, Professionalism, Customer

focus and Inclusiveness.
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9. Management Discussion and Analysis

9.1 Strategic Direction

During the period under review, the Authority implemented its third Strategic Plan 2020 - 2025 which

coincided with the implementation of the government's Big 4 Agenda, Bottom-up Economic

Transformation Agenda (BeTA), the third Medium Term Plan of Kenya's Vision 2030 and Africa

Union Agenda 2063. The strategic objectives ofthe plan provided guidance to the Authority over the

period as it developed activities that realized the following five key result areas: Biosafety

Management System; Legal and Regulatory Frameworks; Knowledge Management and Corporate

Branding; Partnerships, Linkages and Collaborations and Institutional Capacity and Resource

Mobilization.

9.2 Operation Performance Analysis

During the FY 2022/2023, the Authority implemented a number of activities as contained in NBA's

2020-2025 Strategic Plan. The strategic KRAs are the performance areas prioritised by the Authority

to achieve its mandate and deliver value to its stakeholders. The Authority implemented the following

activities during the financial year 2022123:

i. Conducted risk assessment at hundred per cent of GMO and genome edited applications;

ii. Published food and feed safety assessment guidelines, environmental risk assessment

guidelines and harmonized guidelines for coexistence and low level presence of CMO

products;

iii. Carried out capacity building initiatives to Board members, regulatory agencies, lawyers,

policy makers and importers on biotechnology and biosafety matters including emerging

technologies and biosafety communication;

iv. Participated in various biosafety awareness and education programs such as; holding the I ls
Annual Biosafety Conference, exhibition in various ASK shows and also participated in

awareness forums in various counties including Nairobi, Trans-Nzoia, Machakos, Busia,

Mombasa and Nakuru;

v. Monitoring of commercialized Bt Cotton in twenty counties to assess compliance to

Biosafety Laws;

vi. Conducted CMO Market Surveillance in thirty six counties;

vii. Concluded the preparation of the HR instruments which were approved by the State

Corporations Advisory Committee and undertook staff job evaluation which was validated

by the Salaries and Remuneration Commission;
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Recruitment of the top level management including the CEO, Director Biosafety Research

and Compliance and Deputy Director Human Resource Management; and

Implemented Staff Car and Mortgage Scheme.

9.3 Financial Performance Analysis

(a) Approved Budget Analysis

The Authority had a final approved budget of Ksh 194. 1 million constituting of Ksh 89.42 million for

personnel emoluments, Ksh 104.68 million for use of goods and services and other recurrent

expenditures for the financial year 202212023.The revenue estimates were based on approved

activities carried out by the Authority in the year under review.

(b) Overall Expenditure Analysis

The Authority incurred a total of Ksh 189.08 million in actual expenditure, which translates to an

absorption rate of98.0 per cent ofthe approved budget for the FY 2022123.Of the Ksh. ! 89.08 million,

Ksh.82.6 million was spent on compensation to employees, Ksh. 71.89 million was spent on use of

goods and services and other recurrent expenditures.

(c) Revenue

In the financial year under review, revenue from government grants amounted to Ksh 144.9 million.

This represented 74.7 per cent ofthe Authority's approved budget ofKsh 194.10 million. The analysis

ofthe exchequer receipts and the comparative period for the previous financial year are summarised

in table 3 below.

Table 3: Comparable statement of exchequer receipts for the FY 2021/2022 and 202212023

(Amount in Ksh)

Period 2022t2023 2021t2022

Quarter I 36,22s,000 36,225,000

Quarter 2 36,225,000 36,225,000

Quarter 3 36,225,000 36,255,000

Quarter 4 36,225,000 36,225,000

Total 144,900,000 144,900,000
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Authority's compliance with statutory requirements

The Authority has fully complied with all statutory requirements. These include timely submission

of PAYE, N.S.S.F, N.H.l.F, NITA and H.E.L.B to respective institutions during the financial year.

Major risks facing the Authority,

The major risks facing the Authority include;

(a) Constrained budgetary allocation for the financial year 2022/2023. The Authority was allocated
Ksh.l44.9 million for all its operations;

(b) Continued risk of non-allocation of Capital Grants from the Ex-Chequer;

(c) General perceptions on GMO technology; and

(d) Limited capacity due to reduction in govemment funding, inadequate human resources as per the

approved staff establishments well as inadequate infrastructure (office space, Iaboratory for

testing, equipment and facilities).

Material arrears in statutory/financial obligotions

The Authority has no material outstanding /pending bills. The Authority has continued to make

payments as soon as invoices are received except for the normal trade payables.
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10. Environmental and Sustainability Reporting

The Authority is established under the Biosafety Act, 2009 to ensure safety of human and animal

health and provide adequate protection ofthe environment from harmfuI effects that may result from

genetically modified organisms (GMOs). The Authority is mandated to regulate all activities

involving GMOs in food, feed, research, industry, trade and environmental release and it fulfils its

mandate by ensuring and assuring safe development, transfer, handling and use of CMOs.

NBA is also the National Focal Point for the Cartagena Protocol on Biosafety to the Convention on

Biological Diversity (CBD) and is mandated to implement the provisions of the Protocol on all

biosafety matters pertaining to GMOs.

The Authority is aware that good corporate responsibility practices and responsible behaviour are

integral parts of sustainable development which it's fully committed to conducting its work

responsibly and in the best interests of its customers, employees and other stakeholders that it interacts

with that are affected by its activities. This is what guides the Authority to deliver on its mandate.

Below is a brief highlight of NBA's achievements in the following four sustainability pillars:

a) Sustainability strrtegy and profile

The Authority is currently implementing programs to ensure its sustainability such as the expansion

of the review of Biosafety Act and regulations to provide framework for regulation of emerging

technologies, a focus on improvement ofAIA collection through revision offees for services offered,

establishment of a molecular laboratory for GMO testing and automation of its services and

acquisition of land for the construction of NBA headquarters.

The Authority is further aggressively engaged in Biosafety awareness and public education to ensure

increased public confidence in Authority's mandate.

b) Environmental performance

The Authority has mainstreamed its environmental sustainability goals within all its operation areas

as pa( of its corporate strategy to enhance the core mandate. NBA therefore continues to comply with

applicable environmental laws and regulations in the public sector.

The National Biosafety Authority promotes an effective and efficient regulatory framework that

regulates modern biotechnology for, among others, maximizing productivity in agriculture and

industry, protecting the environment, conserving biodiversity, bio-prospecting, and generally

improving the quality of human welfare. Modern biotechnology as a Science, Technology, and
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Innovation tool, underpins the critical areas of national development as identified in the Vision 2030

Third Medium Term Plan programme on Biotechnology and Biosciences specifically Biotechnology

stewardship.

The Authority initiated programmes to ensure that its environmental activities remain sustainable in

the long run. This effort is demonstrated by operationalising policies relating to disposal ofelectronic

waste, by installing water dispenser units, sharing of IT assets, sharing and circulation of soft copies

ofdocuments as opposed to hard copies and printing on both sides ofpaper documents.

Further, the Authority has embraced presidential directives on tree planting having planted over 1,500

tree seedlings in the financial year under review. [n ensuring environmental sustainability, the

Authority works closely with the National Environmental Management Authority as the national focal

point on environmental matters.

c) Employee welfare

The Authority has an elaborate recruitment policy that provides a structured framework for managing

human resources processes of recruitment, selection appointment, development and promotions.

The Human Resource policy, subscribes to the tenets of public service values and principles in the

recruitment ofstaff, as provided in Article 232 of the Constitution. It is the policy ofthe Authority to

provide continuous, high quality training and development to staff to improve their skills and

competencies that will contribute to improved organizational performance. Staff are subjected to a

fair performance appraisal system whose output, amongst other aspects, is the identification ofareas

of improvement and training.

NBA has continued to support training of staff (both individual and at organizational level) as it

considers it important in improving the efficiency and service delivery. In its effort to address

performance and skills gaps with the aim ofenhancing service delivery, the Authority has made it a

routine to train its entire staff through various training institutions. The training process is guided by

the Human Resource policy and the trainings requested for by staff evaluated for approval by the

Human Resource Management Advisory Committee, which has been put in place.

The Authority has a medical cover, work injury benefits (WIBA) and worker's compensation

insurance cover in place.

Fu(her, the Authority's offices are certified registered places of work with the Ministry of Labour,

and thus, they are in conformity with the requirements ofthe Occupational Safety and Health Act of
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2007, (OSHA, 2007). The Authority has ensured compliance with Ministry of Health protocols for

the safety of staff and stakeholders and also for continuity of business.

Below is a summary of how the Human Resource function has continued to enhance the employee

welfare at the Authority;

1 Efforts made in improving skills and career progressionl

The Authority recognizes the importance of training and development to enhance productivity and

efficiency. Towards this realization, the Authority undertook capacity building programs and

facilitated staffto attend professional development courses, seminars and workshops. These trainings

interventions are aligned with the organization's performance management system. To achieve this;

a) The Authority has put in place a Career progression policy;

b) An appointed Training Committee is in place to assist in guiding decision making on

matters pertaining to training and development;

c) There is training and development program where allorganizational, departmental and

individual trainings are assessed and approved, a training plan and commensurate

budget is prepared for approval by the committee while HR monitors its application

and evaluates the performance at the end ofthe program;

d) The Authority has also planned for on-the-job training program on employee

mentorship; and

e) Offers Internship and attachment programs for acquisition ofskills.

2. Efforts made in managing appraisal and reward systems.

a) A policy on Performance management is in place

b) The Authority works using Performance Contracting process and work-plans

(lndividual and departmental).

c) Staff Performance management and appraisal is carried out annually.

3. The organizational policy on Safety and Health in place and in compliance with

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007, (OSHA) provides for;

The Authority is committed to providing and maintaining safe and secure working conditions,

equipment and systems of work that are safe and healthy for use by all employees, visitors

and other persons at or near its operational areas. The Authority has put in place;

a) General guidelines for safety ofstaffat the work place.
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b)

c)

d)

e)

0

c)

Emergency preparedness plans and sensitization of staffon the same.

Provision of fire protection facilities and measures to be adhered to by staff.

Staff insurance for injury at the work place benefits

Undertaking annual safety and health Audit.

Performance contracting reporting on safety and health activities.

Recording Accidents and incidents at the work place by the point person on safety and

health.

Having in place a safety and health Committee running with all matters safety and

health at the work place.

Registration of the Authority with the Directorate of Occupational Safety and Health

servlces.

Ensuring staff welfare provisions are in place.

Provision of First Aid Kits.

Provision ofPersonal Protective Equipments for the Laboratory Personnel.

h)

i)

i)
k)

r)

4. Staff car loan and Mortgage Scheme.

The Authority operationalized a staff car loan and Mortgage facility to assist staff acquires vehicles

and houses at affordable rates as per the approved guidelines.

d) Market place practices

The Authority outlines its efforts to;

a. Anti-corruption issues

The Authority has made remarkable strides in preventing coruption and unethical practices, as

provided in the Ethics and Anti-Corruption Act of20l L Key achievements include establishment of
the Corruption Prevention Committee which has institutionalized anti-corruption initiatives in the

operations of the Authority. The Committee has formulated coordinated and implemented Code of

Conduct and Ethics, Anti-Corruption Policy, Integrity Testing Programme, Whistle Blowers

Protection Systems, Corruption repo(ing channels, Customer Service charter, Conuption Risk

Assessment and mitigation plan and Performance contracting targets.

b. Responsible political involvement

NBA is apolitical regulatory agency established by Biosafety Act, No 2 of2009.
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Responsible supply chain and supplier relations

The supply chain function plays a pivotal role in the timely procurement ofquality goods, works and

services. The procurement process is guided by the Public Procurement and Assets Disposal Act,

2015, relevant regulations, policy and procedures and best practices in the industry. The main

objective of the supply chain function is to improve processes and service delivery to stakeholders

for sustained economic development.

The Authority continues to maintain good business practises and keats its suppliers responsibly by

honouring contracts, respecting payment practices and ensuring that specifications are given in

compliance with the law to ensure there is value for money for the goods procured or seryices

rendered.

The Authority also continues to ensure that the procurement processes are maintained through equal

and fair opportunity to all suppliers through rotational identification of suppliers in the delivery of

goods, works and services. The Authority's procurement processes equally provide sensitization of

all suppliers to help them understand what is expected ofthem together with supplier's rights through

brochure accessed in both the Authority's premise and the website, which helps to promote and

maintain good, and cordial business relation between NBA's procurement department and suppliers.

The Authority's procurement processes also ensure timely payments for supplies of goods and

services. The Authority carried out the following activities during the year under review to ensure

best practices are adhered to;

a. The Authority complied with the 30 per cent rule reservation for women, youth and persons

with disabilities about procurement.

b. During the period, the Authority appointed various Ad hoc Committees to undertake

procurement-related activities such as tender evaluation, disposals and inspection and

acceptance committees. Some of the tender requests opened, evaluated, awarded and

inspected include Medical Cover contracts and Cleaning services.

c. The members of the Disposal Committee appointed by the Accounting Officer identified

assets for disposal, set prices for disposable assets and made recommendations to lhe

Accounting Officer on disposal methods through the Annual Disposal plan.

ot
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tl e) Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is an essential component that enables an organization to

participate in promoting the environmental, ethical and socio-economic concerns ofthe

communities. During the period under review, the Authority pa(icipated in tree planting exercise at

Rungiri Primary School as outlined below;

TREE PLANTING: CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

NBA stafl and Rungiri primary school pupils pose lor a group pholo behind lhe NBA billboard

The National Biosafety Authority (NBA) recently sponsored and participated in a tree planting

initiative at Rungiri Primary School, where over 1000 pupils planted over 700 tree seedlings. The

school, Iocated in a semi-urban environment, had been experiencing a decline in tree cover due to

tree cutting for the school feeding program and classroom construction. However, with ample land

and a borehole to support watering, the school was an ideal candidate for this project, as the teachers

and pupils were dedicated to increasing tree coverage.

Other initiatives included tree planting initiatives in Kaptagat forest during reforestation programme

aimed at planting 15 billion trees by 2032 and participation during the Intemational Day of

Biodiversity in Nyeri County.
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I l Report of the Directors

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended

June 30, 2023, which show the state ofthe National Biosafety Authority affairs.

i) Principal activities

The principal activities ofthe Authority are to;

a) Consider and determine applications for approval for the transfer, handling and use of

Genetically Modified Organisms and related activities;

b) Co-ordinate, monitor and assess activities relating to the safe transfer, handling and use of

Genetically Modified Organisms in order to ensure that such activities do not have adverse

effect on human health and the environment;

c) Co-ordinate research and surveys in matters relating to the safe development, transfer, handling

and use of Genetically Modified Organisms, and to collect, collate and disseminate information

about the findings of such research, investigation or survey;

d) Identify national requirements for manpower development and capacity building in biosafety;

e) Advise the Govemment on legislative and other measures relating to the safe transfer, handling

and use of Cenetically Modified Organisms; and

0 Promote awareness among the general public relating to biosafety; and establish and maintain

a biosafety clearing house to serye as a means through which information is made available to

facilitate the exchange of scientific, technical, environmental and legal information on, and

experience with Genetically Modified Organisms.

iD Results

The results of the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2023, are set out on pages I to 6l .

iiD Directors

The members ofthe Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on page x-xiv. During

the year 2022-2023, the former Chairman's tenure ended and a new Chairman was appointed with

effect from 27s April 2023. Further, during the financial year under consideration, two independent

Board of Directors were appointed on 5th August 2022.

iv) Surplus remission

In accordance with Regulation 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management (National Govemment)

Regulations, regulatory entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its surplus
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funds reported in the audited financial statements after the end ofeach financial year. The Authority

did not make any surplus during financial year 2022-2023 and hence no remittance to the

Consolidated Fund.

v) Auditors

The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Authority in accordance with Article

229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015 for the year/period ended June 30,

2023.

By Order ofthe Board

CS, MOSES LUKALE SANDE

CORPORATION SECRETARY/SECRETARY TO THE BOARI)
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12. Statement of Directors Responsibilities

Section 8l ofthe Public Finance Management Act, 2012 require the Directors to prepare financial

statements in respect of that Authority which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Authority at the end of the financial year/period and the operating results of the Authority for that

year/period. The Directors are also required to ensure that the Authority keeps proper accounling

records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position ofthe Authority. The Directors

are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Authority.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Authority's financial

statements, which give a true and fair view ofthe state ofaffairs ofthe Authority for and as at the end

ofthe financial year (period) ended on June 30,2023. This responsibility includes:

(i) Maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these

continue to be effective throughout the reporting period;

(ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any

time the financial position ofthe Entity;

(iii) designing, implementing and maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and

fair presentation ofthe financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material

misstatements, whether due to error or fraud;

(iv) safeguarding the assets ofthe Authority;

(v) Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

(vi) Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the Authority's financial statements, which have been prepared

using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates,

in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner

required by the PFM Act, 2012. The Directors are of the opinion that the Authority's financial

statements give a true and fair view of the state of Authority's transactions during the financial year

ended June 30,2023, and of the Authority's financial position as at that date. The Directors further

confirms the completeness ofthe accounting records maintained for the Authority's which have been

relied upon in the preparation of the Authority's financial statements as well as the adequacy of the

systems of intemal financial control.

J
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Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Authority will not remain a going

concem for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the linancial statements

The Biosafety Authority's financial statements were approved by the Board on

e( 2023 and signed on its behalfby:

PROF. JENESIO KINYAMARIO
CHAIRMAN BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DR. ROY B. MUGIIRA, Ph,D., MRSB
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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REPORT OF THE AUD]TORGENERAL ON NATIONAL BIOSAFEW AUTHOR]W
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines, and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governanc€ systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of National Biosafety Authority
set out on pages 1 to 55, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at

Report of the Auditor-General on National Biosalety Authorityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023



3O June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assels, statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the National Biosafety Authority as at 30 June, 2023,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with
the Biosafety Act, 2009 and the Public Finance Management Ad,2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1,0 Lack of Revaluation Policy on Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.35,723,150 as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements. However, the
Authority did not review the residual values and useful lives of property, plant and
equipment at the reporting date in accordance with Paragraph 67 of the lnternational
Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) 17 as property, plant and equipment with a
gross carrying amount of Kshs.18,201,325 had a zero-net carrying amount while still
being in use.

Further, the Authority's asset register reflects total book value of Kshs.21 ,913,231 which
does not include additions during the year of Kshs.l,253,513 while the statement of
financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.35,723,150 resulting to an unreconciled
variance of Kshs. 1 3,809,9'1 9.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the property, plant and
equipment balance of Kshs.35,723,'t 50 could not be confirmed.

2.0 Unsupported Reserves

The statement of financial position reflects a reserves balance of Kshs.30,282,003 as
disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements. As previously reported, the disclosure
Note does not highlight the analysis of the assets that make up the reserve balance and
it is not supported by relevant documentations and schedules in the financial statements.
The accounting policy disclosed in Note 4 does not specify the reserves maintained and
the accounting policies adopted as required by Paragraph 95(c) of the lnternational Public
Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS 1) on the presentation of the financial statements.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the reserves balance of
Kshs.30,282,003 could not be confirmed.

3.0 Unsupported Use ofGoods and Services

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services expenditure of
Kshs.71,894,925 as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements. lncluded is an

Reporl ofthe Auditor-General on Nalional Biosafety Authority /or the year ended 30 June, 2023
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expense on conferences and seminars of Kshs.10,037 ,767 . The expenditure includes
Kshs.105,000 paid to seven (7) officers at a rate of Kshs.15,000 each, as planning
committee allowances during the National Biosafety Conference. However, the criteria
and basis for the rates used for payment could not be confirmed as they were not
commensurate with Salaries and Renumeration Commission (SRC) rates.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the use of goods and services
expenditure of Kshs.71,894,925 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the National Biosafety Authority Management
in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements, Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources, and Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and
Governance. However, Management has not resolved all the issues nor given
explanations on failure to resolve the long outstanding issues.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

lrregular Board Meetings

The statement of financial performance reflects board expenses amounting to
Kshs.13,979,455 as disclosed Note 12 to the financial statements. Review of board

Report ofthe Auditor-Ceneral on Nq,ional Biosafety Authorityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
3



records including minutes of meetings held revealed that the Authority held fourteen (14)
full board meetings against a maximum of six (6) board meetings for each financial year
as stipulated by office of the President circular No. OP/CAB.9|1A of 11 March, 2020.
Approval from the Cabinet Secretary on the extra meetings which resulted in extra cost
of Kshs.1 ,900,340 was not provided for audit review.

Further, board meetings on shortlisting exercise for recruitment and interviews of CEO
was held in Mombasa and Naivasha respectively, outside the registered office, and no
authority to hold the meeting outside the registered office by the Cabinet Secretary was
provided. This led to payment of an extra amount of Kshs.819,000 being per diem
allowance to the board members.

ln the circumstances, the Authority was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, lconfirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1.0 Knowledge Gap in Financial Expertise in the Board of Directors

Review of the composition of the Board of Directors revealed that the Authority's Board
did not have a member with financial expertise.

ln the circumstances, the Authority did not benefit from the oversight and advisory
services of financial nature.

2.0 Lack of Risk Management Systems

Review of risk management systems revealed that the Authority did not have an approved
risk management policy and did not maintain a risk register containing risks facing
the entity. lt was, therefore, not clear how Management handles risk exposures. This
is contrary to Regulation 165(1)(a) and (b) of the Public Finance Management
(National Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that the Accounting Officer shall
ensure that the National Government entity develops risk management strategies, which

Rcport o/,he Auditor-Ceneral on National Biosafety Authorityfor the yeqr ended 30 June, 2023
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include fraud prevention mechanism; and a system of risk management and internal
control that builds robust business operations. ,

ln the circumstances, in the absence of an approved risk management policy, the
Authority may not be able to respond in a timely manner to risks which may have an
adverse effect on the current and future business operations.

3.0 Under-Staffing of the Authority

Review of the Authority's staff establishment revealed an approved staffing level of fifty-
three (53) while only forty-one (41) or 77% were in-post.

The Authority sought approval for recruitment from the National Treasury but the same
has not been received.

ln the circumstances, the Authority may not effectively achieve its mandate.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Authority's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Authority or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
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systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring..the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Arlicle 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
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i
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resultrrrg from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Authority to express an opinion on the financial statements.

o Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other mafters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA an a
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

13March,2O24

S
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14. Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2023

*The figure is different from the figures as per the audit certificate issued due to correction in the

accounting treatment of donor funds and deferred income as per IPSAS 23'

**The figure is different from the figure as per the audit ce(ificate due to recognition ofreceipts

totallingKsh.l,006,gT3asperauditcertificateissued.ReferAppendixVlll,JournalEntry'
*i*The figure is different from the figure as per the audit certificate issued due to adjustment of

Gratuity Computation. Refer Appendix VIV Journal Entry'

Revenue from non-erchange transactions
144,900,0006 r43,646,487Transfers from other govemments entities

10,350,176r9;788,2067DonorVPartners Support
155,250,176153,434,693

Revenue from exchange transactions
2,591,503r*7,352,5738Application Fees

2,354,5064,095,0009Conference Fees

160,196,185164,882,266Total revenue

Expenses
65,314,47971,894,925l0Use ofgoods and services

78,603,3611r +82,663,140llEmployee costs
9,424,2t913,979,455t2Board Expenses
6,807,1 l87,280,256t3Depreciation and amortization expense
2,577,4983,506,390l4Repairs and maintenance

10,350,1769,788,206l5Project Expenses
173,076,8sr189,112,372Total expenses

(12,8E0,666)****(24,230,106)Delicit before tax

(r2,880,666)(24,230,r06)Deficit for the year
0024Remission to National Treasury

(12,880F6O****(2s,230,106)Net Deficit for the year

:i * * 't Restated .
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e notes set out on pages 11 to 49 form an integral part of these Financial Statements'

Financial Statements set out on pages I to 6l were signed on behalf ofthe Board of Dircctors

(

EXECI'TIVE OFFICER

RROY B. MUGIIRA

SEADOFTINANCE

ESTIIERN,TIIUKU

rcPAK NO.10108

CHAIRMAN OFTHE BOARI)

PROF.JANESIO KINYAMARIO
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15 Statement ofFinancial Position as at 30 June 2023

*Restated.

The financial stateme out on pages I to 61 were signed on behatfofthe Board of Directors by:

DR. ROY B. MUGIIRA

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ESTHER N. THUKU

HEAD OF FINANCE

ICPAK No. 1010t

PROF. JENESIO KINYAMARIO

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARI)

D,t"...1.*.lreJ.N.u+
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Assets

Current Assets

34,748,138r7,558,817t6Cash and Cash equivalents
012,075,000t'lReceivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

34,748,13819,633,817Total Curr€nt Assets

Non-Current Assets
41,749,89335,723,t50l8Property, Plant and Equipment
41,749,89r35,723,150Total Non- Current Assets
76,498,0315s,356,967Total Assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilitie-s
792,5064,222,335l9Trade and Other Payables

2,395,6512,395,6s120Contract Retention Money
3,262,0632,960,4052tCurrent Provision
r,292,642022Deferred lncome
7,742,8629,578,391Total Current Liabilities

7,7 42,8629,578,391Totel Liabilities

Net Assets
30,282,00330,282,00328Reserves
38,473,16614,243,060

Accumulated SurPlus
0I,253,513

Capital Grants/Fund
68,755,169*45,778,576

Total Net Assets
76,498,0315s,356,967Total Net Assets and Liabilities

,,r".t..?k.*h2? Drte ,L 0L u)>v
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16. Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 30 June 2023

KshsKshsKshsIGhsKshsKshsKshs 81,635,835
51,353,83230,282,003I2021ua JAs ly

lssued new caPttal

Revaluation galn

Additional Charge to Retained Earnings

iationexcess deprecontaxferredDe
(12,880.666)(12,880,666)adj ne tsestmnonustmenaluea rF

forefi ealthet vdus/Surp

CapitaydeveloPment grants received during

the year

Transfer of dePrec

retained eamings

ortisation fromiation/am

capital fund to

Dividends Paid

vid paiddi endsteflmn
68,755,169

38,473,166videndsdifinalProposed 30182,003
As at June 30, 2022

68,75s,169
38,473,16630p82,003

'l021IJultg vAs
hares capitalf newossue

Revaluation galn
deprcciation on

revaluation

Transfer ofexcess

onatlexcess deprecontaxDeferred (24,230,106)
(24,230,106)investmentsadj onustnentvalueratF

fordefic earthe v)lus/ (Surp

I
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C

CapitaUdevelopment grants received during

the year
1,253,513 1,253,51 3

Transfer of depreciatior/amortisation from

capital fund to retained eamings

Dividends paid

Interim dividends paid

Proposed final dividends

As at June 30, 2023 J0,282,003* 14,243,060 r,253,513 43,778,576

+ The Reserves of Ksh 30,282,003 relates to the capital inpul in relation to assets less liabilities that were transferred to the Authority at

inceplion.
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17. Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2023

rResldled.

J

6

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Transfers from other govemments entities 6 t3 t,571,487 144,900,000

Donors/Partners Support 7 8,495,564 8,133,',|22

Application Fees 8(a) 6,345,600 2,591 ,503 
*

Conference Fees 9 4,09s,000 2,354,506

Total receipts 150,507,651 1s7,979,73r

Payments

Use ofgoods and services I 0 a( ) 69,045,096 64,734,479

Employee costs I l(a) 80,124,312 80,37 t,296

Board Expenses t2 13,979,455 9,424,2t9

Repairs and maintenance 14 3,506,390 2,577,498

Project Costs l5 9,788,206 r 2,802,889

Total payments 176,443,459 169,910,381

Net cash flows used in operating activities z5 (2s,93s,808) (l1,930,6s0)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of PPE ( 1,253,5 1 3) (l1,16s,060)

Net cash flows used in investing activities (r,2s3,sr3) (u,r6s,060)

Cash flows from financing activities

Net cash flows from financing Activities 0 0

Net decrease in cash &
Cash equivalents

(27,189,321) (23,09s,7r0)

Cash and cash equivalents at I July t6 34,748,t38 57,843,848

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June t6 7,558,817 34,748,138*
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C
18. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual amounts for the year ended 30 June 2023

Budset notes:

Material variances between the final budget and actual amounts have been explained in the budget notes according to International Public

Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS 24) Paragraph 14 and29. Fudher the Authority has prepared the reconciliation statement ofthe actual

amount on a comparable basis and actual amounts in the financial statements as required by Paragraph 47 (b) ofthe Intemational Public

Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS 24).

'l

A b C<r+b) d e={c-d) tsd/c*lfil
Revenue

Transfers from Other Govemments entities 1,r4,900,000 144,900,000 144,m0,000 0 100

Donors/PartneB Support 8,495,564 8,495,564 8,495,564 0 100

Application Fees 2,000,000 3,420,600 5,420,600 '1,352,573 ( 1,931,973) 135

Conference Fees 2,000,000 1,953,000 3,953,000 4,09s,000 ( r42,000) 103

Total Income 148,900,000 13,869,164 t62,769,|U tu,li/,3,t37 (2,073,973t l0l
Expenses

Use ofGoods and Services u367,924 11,075,392 '15,443,316 7 t,894,925 3,548,391 95

Employee costs 98,969,033 (9,54s,332) 89,423,701 82,633,198 6,790,503 92

Remuneration of Directors 9,011,693 5,242,885 14,254,578 13,979,455 275,t23 98

Repairs and Maintenance 2,685,000 1,269,655 3,954,655 3,506,390 448,265 89

Project Expenses 3,207,210 6,580,996 9,788,206 9,788,206 0 100

Total Expenditure 178,240,860 14,539,164 192,7W,024 r89,082,430 3,697,594 98

Surplus for the period \24,239,293)
Capital Expenditure r,993,000 (670,000) 1,323,000 1,253,513 69,487 95
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l. Budget Revision/Adjustments Notes-As provided under IPSAS 24.29, the Authority has provided explanations of changes

between the original and final budget indicating what caused the difference whether was due to reallocations or other causes in this

case was due to budget reallocation during the year under review as highlighted below;

a. Development partners support-The Authority submitted a number of funding proposals to several development partners

during the financial year. Disbursements towards prognms and activities supported by the development partners during the

financial year was Kshs.8,495,564 which was incorporated in the revised annual budget.

b. Application Fees-The Authority had projected to collect Kshs.2,000,000 from application fees as its A-l-A during the

financial year. Due to increased activities on application of GMO services through KENTRADE platform, the Authority

received more fees hence revised the budget from Kshs.2,000,000 to Kshs.3,420,000.

c. Conference Fees-The Authority had projected to collect Kshs.2,000,000 from the I ls Annual Biosafety Conference. During

the conference, the Authority received more support from partners towards the conference amounting to by Kshs.l,953,000.

The budget was revised from Kshs.2,000,000 to Kshs.3,953,000 to reflect the colleclions as the additional amounts towards

the conference.

d. Employees Costs-A budget reallocation of Kshs.9,545,332 was made from the salaries and allowances. This was due to

underutilization of the funds which had been allocated towards staff promotions during the financial year. However, this

was not undertaken since the Authority was in the process ofundertakingjob evaluation exercise with the SRC. Additionally,

approval for recruitment of new employees was not granted by the National Treasury whereas the Authority had already

made provisions ofthe same in the initial budget. Further, the position ofthe Director Technical Services fell vacant with

effect from September 2022, and the recruitment process for replacement for the position had not been completed towards

the end of the financial year. The funds were reallocated towards expenditure related to recruitmenl of the CEO, Director

Technical Services and the Deputy Human Resource Officer positions.

e. Use of Goods and services-Some budget votes under the use of goods and services which were underutilized during the

financial year supported other deserving votes which required more budget allocation. This was geared towards ensuring

effeclive service delivery and discharge oflhe Authority's core mandates as well as fast track key activities which required

8 {L
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Doneting Receiving

Commwrication Supplies 2,727,540 Travel, Subsistence and others 3,552,184

Contracted Services 809,167 Insurance 2,300,482

Routine Maintenance 1,269,6ss

the Authority to reallocate any potential surplus to some priority votes. A sunmary of the votes reallocated is as shown

below;

2. Budgct Notes on percentege of utilizrtion-As provided under IPSAS 24.14, the Authority has provided explanatory notes to

underutilization of the budget which is below 90p% or over utilization as required as highlighted below;

a. Application fees- Application fees was achieved al 135%o. This was because of unidentified direct deposits into the

Authority's bank account, which had been received for some period and stood at Kshs.1,006,973 as at 30 lwrc,2022.

Following consultations with the various institutions which include KENTRADE, the deposits were confirmed to relate to

payments towards import duty which had been made for online applications. In compliance to Regulation 90(3) ofthe Public

Finance Management (National Govemment) Regulations, 2015 the amount has been recogrised as Application fees in the

FY 2022/23. There was also an increase in applications for GMO free certificates during the FY 2022n3.

b. Conference Fees-The Authority rcceived morc support towards the I ld'Annual Biosafety Conference which increased the

collection from the initial projections.

c. Repeirs and Msintenancc.The undenrtilization of rcpairs and maintenance at 897o was a result of motor vehicle repairs

which had been budgeted for but had not been undertaken by the end of the financial year.

9
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VerienceDescription Final Budget Actual on Compereble Besis

1,931,973Application Fees s,420,600 7,352,573

44826sRepeirs end Meintenance 3,9s4,65s 3,506,390

l0
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19. Notes to the Financial Statements

l. General Information

National Biosafety Authority is established by and derives its authority and accountability

from the Biosafety Act No. 2, 2009. The Authority is wholly owned by the Govemment of

Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The Authority's principal activity is to ensure and assure

safe development, transfer, handling and use of genetically modified organisms (GMOs) in

Kenya.

2- Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the

measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment,

marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated

recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The

preparation of financial statements in conformity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting

Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management

to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Authority's accounting policies. The

areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and

estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5 ofthese financial

statements.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the

functional and reporting currency of the Authority. The financial statements have been

prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State Corporations Act CAP 446, and

Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted

have been consistently applied to all the years presented. The Authority has prepared the

financial statements in accordance with IPSAS Accrual in line with Paragraph 28 of the

Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS l) on the preparation of financial

statements.

ll
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Adoption ofNew and Revised Standards

i. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30

June 2023.

IPSAS

Financial

Instruments

4t: Applicable: I't January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the

financial reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will

present relevant and useful information to users of financial

statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and

uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model

for financial assets that considers the characteristics of

the asset's cash flows and the objective for which the

asset is held;

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all financial instruments

subject to impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope of the

guidance. The model develops a strong link between an

Entity's risk management strategies and the accounting

treatment for instruments held as part of the risk

management strategy.

The Authority does nol deal in Jinancial inslrumenls; therefore,

the standard does not apply.

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable: l't January 2023

The objective ofthis Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

12
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benefits. The information provided should help users of the

financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit

schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The Authority does nol deal in social beneJits; therefore, the

slandard does not apply.

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 41,

Financial

Instruments

Applicable: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to

the components of borrowing costs which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples

on hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guaranteed contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on

classifting financial instruments on initial adoption of

accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 41 was issued.

Other

improvements to

IPSAS

Applicable li January 2023

. IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the

General Government Sector. Amendments to refer to the latest

System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).

t IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits. Now deletes the term composite

social security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS.

. IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement, Standard no longer included in lhe 2023

l3
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ll. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the

year ended 30 June 2023.

Early adoption of standards

The Authority did not adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year

2022/2023.

lll

IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 41 which

is applicable from l't January 2023.

IPSAS 43 Applicable I1 lanuary 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that

lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully

represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of

financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflows ofan Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right ofuse assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable In January 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured

at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the

depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented

separately in the statement of financial position and the results of

discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement ol

financial performance.

l4
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Exchequer allocstions

The Authority recognises revenue from exchequer allocation when the monies are

received and asset recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related

condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income

is recognised instead of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are recognised when it

is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset

will flow to the Authority and fair value ofthe asset can be measured reliably.

Fees, taxes and fines

The Authority recognizes revenues from fees, taxes and fines when the event occurs and

the asset recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related condition

attached that would give rise to a liability to repay the amount, defened income is

recognized instead of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is

probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset

will flow to the Entity and the fair value ofthe asset can be measured reliably.

Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other govemment entities are measured

at fair value and recognized on obtaining control ofthe asset (cash, goods, services and

property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic

benefits or service potential related to the asset will flow to the Authority and can be

measured reliably. To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give

rise to a liability to repay the amount, the amount is recorded in the statement offinancial

position and realised in the statement of financial performance over the useful life ofthe

assets that has been acquired using such funds.

l5
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services

The Authority recognizes revenue from rendering ofservices by reference to the stage of

completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of

completion is measured by reference to labour hours incuned to date as a percentage of

total estimated labour hours. Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably,

revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of

ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery olthe goods and when

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic

benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset's net carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding

to determine interest income each period.

ii. Revenue from exchange transactions-IPSAS 9

Sale of tender and Authority revenue

Revenue from the sale ofgoods is recognised when the sigrificant risks and rewards of

ownership have been transfened to the buyer, usually on delivery ofthe goods and when

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic

benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.

There was no tender sales revenue for the year under review.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life ofthe financial asset to that asset's

net carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine

interest income each period,

b) Budget information

The original budget for the Financial Year 202212023 was approved by the Board of Directors

on 26s July 2022. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the

approved budget in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The

additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the Authority upon receiving the

respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the Authority recorded

additional appropriations of Ksh.7 ,447 ,5'7 3 on the 202212023 budget.

The Authority's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure

disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis

using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial

performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial

statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation

to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts,

prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of

comparison ofbudget and actual amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also

made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation ofthe

financial statements and the approved budget. A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a

comparable basis included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts and the

actuals as per the statement of financial performance has been presented under the Statement of

Comparison Budget and Actual amounts in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

c) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the cunent period are measured at the amount expected

to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute

the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the area

where the Authority operates and generales taxable income. Current income ta.x relating to items

recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and not in the statemenl of financial

performance. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to

situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes

provisions where appropriate.

d) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of

the items. When significant parts ofproperty, plant and equipment are required to be replaced

at intervals, the Authority recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful Iives

and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost

is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the

recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in

surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil

or nominal consideralion the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

The Authority's accounting policy on property plant and equipment is stated in the approved

Financial Policies and Procedures Manual which states that;

Items ofproperty and equipment will be stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment.

Assets donated to the Authority will be included in the accounts at the value attributed to the

asset by the donor and where the value is not readily provided, at a reasonable valuation.

Depreciation will be charged on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the

assets. The Authority does not charge depreciation in the year ofacquisition.

Where Impairment of assets are concemed, the carrying amounts of the assets will be reviewed

at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. lfany

such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount will be estimated and an impairment

loss recognized in the income statement.

a

a

a
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

e) Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item to the Authority. Assets held under a finance lease are

capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if
lower, at the present value of the future minimum lease payments. The Authority also

recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The liability recognized

is measured as the present value ofthe future minimum lease payments at initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges

and reduction ofthe lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate ofinterest on the remaining

balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However,

ifthere is no reasonable certainty that the Authority will obtain ownership ofthe asset by the

end ofthe lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter ofthe estimated useful life of

the asset and the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits

incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Authority. Operating lease payments are

recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease

term. During the financial year 202212023, the Authority had not leased any item.

f) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible

assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date ofthe exchange.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intangible assets,

excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in

surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incuned. The useful life ofthe

intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite

useful life are assessed for impairment at each reporting date.

g) Research and development costs

The Authority expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual

project are recognized as intangible assets when the Authority can demonstrate:

l) The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available

for use or sale.
19
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2) Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset.

3) How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

4) The availability ofresources to complete the asset.

5) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is canied at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when

development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period

of expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for

impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or

deficit.

h) Financialinstruments

IPSAS 4l addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and

financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for

financial assets. The Authority does not have any hedge relationships and therefore the new hedge

accounting rules have no impact on the Authority's financial statements. A financial instrument

is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset ofone entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument ofanother entity. At initial recognition, the entity measures a financial asset or financial

liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case ofa financial asset or financial liability not at

fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition or issue ofthe financial asset or financial liability.

a) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

The Authority classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis ofboth the entity's

management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset is held

within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. A

financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is held within the

management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows and

20
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selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus or deficit unless it is

measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unless an entity has made

irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investmenls in equity instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the Authority classifies its financial

assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair

value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

criteria being met.

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held lor collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows

represent solely payments ofprincipal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value through

surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that is

subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in

profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income from these financial

assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial

assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are

measured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying amount are taken

through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and

foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deficit. Interest income from

these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An

estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review ofall outstanding amounts at the year

end.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/

equity are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity

manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale ofthe

assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Impairment

The Authority assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated

with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The

Authority recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The Authority did

not make any critical estimates and significant judgments in determining the expected credit loss

(ECL).

b) Financial liabilities

Classification

The Authority classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for

financial liabilities measured through profit or loss.

i) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost ofthe inventory is

its fair value at the date of acquisition. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present

location and conditions are accounted for, as follows:

i) Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

ii) Finished goods and work in progress: cost ofdirect materials and labour and a proportion of

manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing

costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a

nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement

cost. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less

the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

or distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or

consumption in the ordinary course ofoperations of the Authority.

j) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or

service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made ofthe

amount of the obligation. Where the Authority expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,

for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only

when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in

the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

k) Social Benefits

Social benefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that meet

the eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects ofsocial risks and iii) Address the need ofsociety as

a whole. The entity recognises a social benefit as an expense for the social benefit scheme at the

same time that it recognises a liability. The liability for the social benefit scheme is measured at

the best estimate of the cost (the social benefit payments) fiat the entity will incur in fulfilling the

present obligations represented by the liability.

l) Contingentliabilities

The Authority does not recognize a contingent tiability but discloses details ofany contingencies

in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility ofan outflow ofresources embodying

economic benefits or service potential is remote.

m) Contingent assets

The Authority does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details ofa possible asset whose

existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events

not wholly within the control of the Authority in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent

assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the

financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or

service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related

revenue are recognized in the financial statements ofthe period in which the change occurs.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

n) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Authority does not keep reserves and therefore has not adopted any accounting policies for

the same.

o) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Authority recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects

of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is

impractical.

p) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

The Authority provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution

plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an Entity pays fixed contributions into a

separate Entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further

contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to

employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the

payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become

payable. Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution

plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit

method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future

contributions on proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and Iump sum

payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

The Authority operates a retirement benefit scheme for all its permanent and pensionable

employees. Further, an amount equivalent to 3l per cent of basic salary has been set aside as

gratuity for all employees on contract. The Authority's contribution towards employee pension

scheme and staff gratuity for employees on contract are charged to the statement of financial

performance in the year to which the employees rendered their services to the Authority.

q) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the

date ofthe transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign cunency are reported at

the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date.
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Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at

rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recogrized

as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

r) Borrowing costs

Bonowing costs are capitalized against qualifring assets as part ofproperty, plant and equipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or

constructed and bonowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the

asset is complete. Further borrowing costs arc charged to the statement of financial performance.

s) Related parties

The Authority regards a related party a.!i a person or an Entity with the ability to exert control

individually or jointly, or to exercise significant inlluence over the Authority, or vice versa.

Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the CEO, Director

Corporate Services, Corporation Secretary and Head Legal Services and the Deputy Director

Technical Services.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

t) Serviceconcessionarrangements

The Authority analyses all aspects ofservice concession arrangements that it enters in determining

the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular, where a private

party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Authority recognizes that asset when, and only

when, it controls or regulates the services the operator must provide together with the asset, to
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Description June 2023 ( Ksh) June 2022 (Ksh)

Salaries and other

employment benefits

short-term 18,938,149 t0,577,220

Allowances paid to members of the

Board of Directors

13,979,455 9,424,219

Grants from COK r44,900,000 1,14,900,000
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whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case of assets other than 'whole-of-life'

assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant

residual interest in the asset at the end of the arangement. Any assets so recognized are measured

at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized, the Authority also recognizes a

corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

u) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call

and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily

convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various

commercial banks at the end ofthe financial year. For the purposes ofthese financial statements,

cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to authorised public

officers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial

year.

v) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

w) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023.

5. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation ol the Authority's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of

the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe asset or liability affected

in future periods. Significant judgments include: Leave provision, useful lives and depreciation

methods and asset impairment. Notes relating to the subject are included under the affected areas

of the financial statements.
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Estimrtes and assumptions,

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk ofcausing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity based its

assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements

were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may

change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such

changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual value

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

potential future use and value from disposal:

a) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity.

b) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes.

c) The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed.

d) Availability of funding to replace the asset.

e) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Each component of an asset held in the asset register, excluding land, shall be depreciated

separately to reflect the differing useful lives relating to each component ofa depreciable asset.

Any residual parts not comprising a specific component of a depreciable asset shall also be

depreciated.

The Authority shall use straight line basis to wdte down the cost of each asset or the revalued

amounts over the useful estimated lives as it is expected that the service (economic benefit)

provided by the asset shall be consumed in a uniform manner throughout i1s useful life. The

various classes ofassets, their useful lives and depreciation rate is indicated below: The method

of depreciation and amortization used is reducing balance. The following rates are used in

computing depreciation:
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Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information

available. Additional disclosure ofthese estimates ofprovisions is included in Note 40. Provisions

ae measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation

d the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Frovisions are recognised when;

a A reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

b. It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits ofservice.

c Potential that the Authority will be required to settle the obligation.

d. The Authority has a present obligation resulting from a past event.

The provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best

eftimate or reversed if it is no longer probable and that an outflow of resources embodying

ebonomic benefits or services potential will be required to settle the obligation. Employees'

etrtitlement to annual leave is recognised when it accrues. A provision is made on the estimated

liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by the employees up to the amount of

obligation.

Useful Life(Years) Depreciation Rate(%)Asset Class

33.3J,Computer Equipments

12.58Furniture and Fittings

33.33Intangible Assets

2021D0222022n023Description

2,102,0634,640,890rGratuity Provision
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

6. Transfers from Other Government entities

The Authority's budgeted exchequer amount in the Financial Year 2022123 was equal to the FY

202112022 exchequer budget. The Authority received exchequer amounting to Kshs.144,900,000

in the FY 202212023 which was disbursed through the Ministry of Education for the first, second

and third quarter and from the Ministry ofAgriculture during the fourth quarter.

b) Transfers from Ministries, Departments and Agencies (MDAs)

Unconditional Grents

Operational Grant 144,900,000 144,900,000

Unconditional development grants 0 0

Other Grants 0 0

Total Unconditional Grants 144,900,000 144,900,000

Conditional Grants amortised/ transferred to revenue

Other Organizational Grants 0 0

Total Government Grants And Subsidies 144,900,000 144,900,000

Ministry of
Education, State

Department of
University
Education &
Research

AND
Ministry of
Agriculture and

Livestock
Development, State

Department for
Crop Development 143,646,487 0 1,253,513 144,900,000 144,900,000

Total 143,646,487 0 I,253,513 144,900,000 144,900,000
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During the Fy 202212023, Ksh. 1,253,513 received from the exchequer was used in the
acquisition ofcapital assets. The assets have been accounted for under Plant Property and
Equipment.

7 Donors/Partners Support

Program for Biosafety Systems (PBS) 7,4n,064 5,949,462

UNEP GEF 1,084,500 2,171,400

Donations transferred to revenue on conditions being met. 1,292,642 2,229,314

Other Public Donations 0 0

Total Transfers and Donations 9,788206 10,350,176*

Reconciliation Of Public Contributions and Donations

Balance Unspent at Beginning of The Year 1,292,642 936,672

Current Year Receipts 8,495,564 8,120,862

Conditions Met - Transfened to Revenue 9,788,206 10,350,176

Conditions To Be Met - Remain Liabilities 0 1,292,642
*Restated.

The Authority received Ksh. 7,411.064 from IFPRI as a grant towards the support ofPBS project,

the project is still ongoing. The Authority also received Ksh. I ,084,500 from UNEP in support of

the UNEP GEF project which has since been completed.
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8. Application Fees

+Restated.

8(a) Application Fees

This revenue relates to payments for consideration and determination ofapplications for activities

involving GMOs. During the FY 2022123 there were increased applications for GMO free

certificates as compared lo FY 2021122, representing a 65%o increase in the two consecutive

periods.

9 Conference Fees

This revenue relates to payments towards the Annual Biosafety Conference. During the FY

2022/23, there was considerable interest and participation in the Annual Conference as compared

lo FY 2021122, representing a 42Yo increase in the two consecutive periods.

Application Fees 7,352,573 2,591,503*

Total Application Fees 7,352,573 2,591,503*

Application Fees 7,352,573

Application Fees Recognized inFY 2021122 (t,006,973)

Total Application Fees charged to cashflow 6,345,600

Conference Fees 4,095,000 2,354,506

Total 4,095,000 2,354,506
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10. Use of Goods and Services

Electricity & Water 0 1,950

Security & Cleaning Services r,286,080 t,260,328

t42,000 459,000Professional Services

Advertising & Branding 2,168,364 I ,421 ,868

Audit Fees 580,000 1,740,000

2,850,972 1,504,529Catering Services

10,037,767 7,795175Conferences and Seminars

1,t90,260 634,219Computer Accessories

2,496,320 t,162,400Consulting Fees

86,726 190,636Cleaning Materials

475,000 0Club Membership

150,000 300,800CSR

Fuel and Oil 2,239,271 |,998,567

General Office 25,852 39,620

l 1,688,383 8,756,942Insurance

Intemet 1,327,332 700,851

92,751 0Legal Expenses

32,864 52,005Postage

Printing, Publishing & Newspapers 473,57 5 94t,206

Rent expenses 8,204,s26 9,133,655

2,505,1 06Reagents & Market Surveillance 6,921,520

769,160 4'13,726Stationery

t,783,696 1,848,000Telecommunication

Training 5,66r,938 7,6tt,807
Travel, Subsistence & Other Allowances t0,982,824 14,538,444

Bank charges 227,7 44 2t3,645
0 30,000Uniform & Other Clothing

Total 71,894,925 65314,479
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l0(a) Use of Goods and Services

The total payment for use of goods and services for the FY 2022/23 stood at 71,894,925

representing a 9oZ increase compared to Ksh.65,314,479 recorded in the FY 2021122. The increase

is due to conference expenses incurred at the Annual Conference and increase in premiums

charged for staff medical cover during the FY 2022123.

ll. Employee Costs

*Restated

ll(a) Employee Costs

Total Use ofGoods and Services 71,894,925 65,314,479

Accrued Trade Payables FY 21122 Paid 792,s06 0

Accrued Trade Payables FY 22/23 (4,222,33s) 0

Accrued Audit fees FY 20121 , 21122 Paid I ,160,000 580.000

Audit Fee Provision FY 22123 (580,000) 0

Total Use of Goods & Services Charged to Cashflow 69,045,096 64,734,479

Salaries and Wages 38,401,49'1 34, t43,599

Employer Contribution to Pension Schemes 3,162,818 2,657,942

Transport Allowance 7 ,1| ,452 6,501 ,91 4

House Allowance 22,6ss,s07 20,81 9,9 t 8

Responsibility, Acting, Entertainment, Leave, Extraneous,

Special duty & Non Practicing Allowances
3,303,064 2,373,s2s

CEOs Salary 4,463,339 5,834,666

Gratuity 3,53 5,403 4,1 86,828*
Welfare 30,000 2,084,970

Employee costs 82,663,140 18,603,3621,

Total Employee Costs 82,663,140 78,603,362

Accrued Gratuity FY 21122 2,t02,063 I,767 ,934
Accrued Gratuity FY 22/23 (4,640,890)

Employee costs Charged to Cashflow 80,124,313 80371,296
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The total expenditure for the compensation of employees for FY 2022/2023 stood at

Kshs.82,633,199 as compared to Kshs.82,473,359 recorded inFY 202ll2022.There was minimal

increase to expenditures related to compensation ofemployees during the financia[ year.

12. Board Expenses

The total payment for Board Expenses for the FY 2022123 stood at 13,979,455 representing a 327o

increase compared to Ksh.9,424,219 recorded in the FY 2021/22. This increase is due to Board

expenses in the FY 2022123 during the recruitment process of the CEO, Director Biosafety

Research & Compliance and Deputy Director Human Resource.

13. Depreciation and Amortization Expense

14. Repairs and Maintenance

The total expenditure for the repairs and maintenance for FY 2022123 stood at Ksh. 3,506,390

representing a 260/o increase compared to Ksh. 2,577,498 recorded in the FY 2021/22. The
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Chairman's Honoraria 960,000 960,000

Sitting Allowances 6,504,000 3,620,000

345,785 1 66,301Medical lnsurance

660,000 1,929,502Induction and Training
Accommodation Allowances 3,476,200 I,565,200

852,690 6l1.281Local Travel Allowances

8l r,280 3l 1.935Mileage Allowances

Lunch Allowances 285,500 176,000

84,000 84,000Airtime for Board Chair

t3,979,455 9,424,219Total

7,280,256 6,807,I I 8Property, plant and equipment

Total depreciation and amortization 7,290,256 6,807,1l8

0 89,058Buildings
Vehicles 2,461,624 |,699,37 t

951,856 709,919Computers and Accessories

General Repairs 92,910 79,150

Total Repairs and Maintenance 3,s06,390 2,577,499
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increase is attributed to high maintenance costs for motor vehicles. Most of the vehicles are

more than 10 years old.

15. Project Expenses

Program for Biosafety Systems (PBS) 9,474,206 4,918,776

ERAfrica 0 580,000

National Research Fund Q.,IRF) 0 96,000

CORTEVA 0 1 8 I 6 200

UNEP GEF 3 r4,000 2,939,200

Total Project Expenses 9,788206 10350,176
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

16. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Detailed Analysis of the Cash and Cash Equivalents

Current Account 1,558,81 7 34,748,138

Savings Account 0 0

On - Call Deposits n 0

0 0Fixed Deposits Account

6,000,000 0Staff Car Loan/ Mortgage

7,558,817 34 748 138Total Cash And Cash Equivalents

a) Current Account

Kenya Commercial Bank I I19845858 r,558,8r7 34,748,138

Sub- Total 1,55E,E17 34,74E,138

b) On - Call Deposits

Kenya Commercial Bank 0 0

Sub- Total 0 0

c) Fixed Deposits Account

Kenya Commercial Bank 0 0

Sub- Total 0 0

d) Staff Car Loan/ Mortgage

0t 141588766100Co-Operative Bank 6,000,000 0

Sub- Totel 6,000,000 0

e) Others

Cash In Transit 0 0

Cash In Hand 0 0

Mobile Monev Accounts 0 0

Sub- Totel 0 0

Grand Totel 7,558,817 34,748,138
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Reconciliation for Impairment Allowance on Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

17, ReceivablesfromNon-ExchangeTransactions

Govemment Grants 12,075,000 0

Less: impairment allowance (0) 0( )

Total receivables from non- exchange transsctions 12,075,000 0

Ageing Analysis- Receivables from non-
exchange trrnsactions

2022-2023
%" ol

the
total

202t-
2022

Yo ol
the

total
Less than I vear r2,075,000 100% 0 v,

Between [-2 years 0 0o/o 0 v.

Over 3 years 0 0o/o 0 %

Total 12,075,000 l00Yo 0 %

At the beginning ofthe year 0 0

Additional provisions during the year 12,075,000 0

Recovered during the year 0( ) 0( )

Written off during the year 0( ) (0)

At the end ofthe year 12,075,000 0
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment

33,r9929r 13,147,197 1r,175,899 86,072,160As At I July 2021 2E549,773

1,940,45r 2242,192 I t,165,060Additions 6,982,4t7

Disposals

Transfers/Adjustments

40,1E1,70E 15,087,648 t3,418,091 97 237220As at 306 June 2022 28549,773

I,253,5 l3 r2$5r3Additions

Disposals

Transfer/Adjustments

98,490,73328,549,773 40,181,708 l6J41,r6l 13,418,091As at 30t June 2023

Depreciation And Impairment
(48,680r09)At I July 202r Q027t,Ots) (20,r04,489) (8292,687) (12,01E)

(6,807,il8)Depreciation (2,069,690) (2,t67,580) (t,s7s,912) (993,936)

Impairment

TransferV Adjustments

(22272,069\ (9,868F99) (1,005,954) (ss487327)As At 30rh June 2022 (22J40,70s)
('t,919.297) (2,232,n7) ( 1,059,153) (72E02s6)Depreciation (2,069,689)

Disposals

Impairment

Transfer/Adj ustment
(24,t9r)66) (12,r00J16) (2,06s,107) (62,767583')As al 30rh June 2023 (24,410394)

Net Book Values

6209,068 17,909,639 5.219,049 12,412137 41,749,.893As at 306 June 2022

4,,139379 ts,990342 4240,445 l l J52,984 35,723,150As at 30rh June 2023
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Valuation

Land and buildings/ Equipment were not valued during the financial year.

l8 (b) Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost

If the freehold land, buildings and other assets were stated on the historical cost basis the amounts

would be as follows:

Property plant and Equipment includes the following assets that are fully depreciated

Land

Buildings

Plant And Machinery r 3,4 I 8,091 (2,06s,107) 11,3s2,984

Motor Vehicles, Including Motorcycles 28,549,773 (24,410,394) 4,139,379

Computers And Related Equipment 16,341,161 (12,r 00,7r6) 4,240,44s

Office Equipment, Fumiture, And Fittings 40,181,70E (24,19t,366) t5,990,342

Total 98,490,733 (62,767,583) 35,723,150

Plant and Machinery

Motor Vehicles including Motorcycles t8,201,325 4,5s0,33 r

Computers and Related Equipment

Office Equipment, Fumiture and Fittings

Totel 18,201325 4,550331
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

19. Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables are normal trade payables incurred in the course of the year.

20. Contract Retention Money

The amount of Ksh. 988,675 was retained being l0% of the office-pa(itioning project at the

Commission for University Education (CUE) complex in the FY 2010111. At the expiry of the

defect period, the contractor was not paid the amount due to defects that had to be addressed but

the repairs were never done. Neither has the contactor made any claim for the amount. The

Authority is in the process to have the liability waived. Ksh. 1,406,976 relates to office

partitioning project at NACOSTI building. The defect liability period has not lapsed.

Trade payables 4,222,335 792,506

Payments received in advance 0 0

Employee payables 0 0

Third-party payments 0 0

Other payables 0 0

Totsl lrrde and other payables 4,222,335 792,506

2022-2023Ageing analysis: (Trade and other payables)
7o of the

Total 2021-2022
7o of the

Total

Under one vear 4,222,335 l00Yo 792,506 100%

I -2 years 0 Yo 0 %

2-3 years 0 % 0 %

Over 3 vears 0 % 0 %

Total (tie to ahove total) 4,222,335 792,506

Contract Retention Monev 2,395,651 2,395,651

Prepayments 0 0

Other deposits 0 0

Total deposits 2,395,651 2,395,651

Ageing analysis: (Refundable deposits) 2022-2023

o/o of the
Total 2021-2022

Yo of the

Total
Under one year 0 0% 359,562 t5%
I -2 vears 359,562 | 5o/o 1,047,414 44v.

2-3 years 1,047 ,414 44Yo 0 0%

Over 3 years 988,675 4tY. 988,675 41v.

Totel 2,395,651 2,395,651
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

21. Current Provisions

The deferred income movement is as follows:

22. Deferred Income

23, Employee Benefit Obligations

Retirement benefi t Asset/ Liability

The Authority operates a defined benefit scheme for all full+ime employees from July |,2022. The

scheme is administered by ICEA Lion Pension Fund who are the custodians of the scheme. The

scheme is based on 5 percentage of salary of an employee at the time of retirement while the

employer contributes l0% ofbasic salary of each employee every month. Employer contributions

41

Balance b/f I,160,000 2,102,063 3,262,063
Additional provisions 580,000 3,691,647 4,27t,647

Provision utilised
( r,160,000) (1,1s2,820)

(2,3t2,82
0)

Change due to discount and time
value for money

0( ) 0( ) 0( )

Provisions from prior year single
entry adjustments

0 0 (2,260,485) 0

Total provisions year end 580,000 4,640,890 (2,260,48s) 2,960,405

Program for Biosafety Systems (PBS) 0 1,292,642

Total Deferred Income t, t,292,642

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Balance Brought Forward 1,292,642 1,292,642

Additions 8,495,564 8,495,564

Transfers To Capital Fund 0( ) 0( )
Transfers To Income

Statement (9,788,206) (9,788,206)

Other Transfers 0( ) 0( )

Balance Carried Forward 0 0
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are recognised as expenses in the statement of financial performance within the period they are

incurred.

The Authority also contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a

defined contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Act. The Authority's

obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time and is

currently at 12%o per employee per month. Other than NSSF the Entity also has a defined

contribution scheme operated by ICEA Pension Fund. Employees contribute 5% while employers

contribute 10% ofbasic salary. Employer contributions are recognised ns expenses in the statement

offinancial performance within the period they are incurred.

24, Surplus Remission

In accordance with Section 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management Act regulations, regulatory

entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its surplus funds reported in the

audited financial statements after the end of each financial year. The Authority did not make any

surplus during the financial year 2022/2021 and hence no remittance to the Consolidated Fund

The Surplus Remission has been computed as follows:

Surplus Remission Payable

0 0Surplus for the period

0Less: Allowable deductions by NT 0

90% Computation (lncluded in Statement of
Financial Performance) 0 0

Payable at the beginning of the year 0 0

Paid during the year 0 0

Payable at end of the year 0 0
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

25, Cash Generated from Operations

26. Financial Risk Management

The Authority's activities expose it to a variety offinancial risks including credit and liquidity risks

and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Authority's overall risk management programme

focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the

potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The

Authority does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to

customers with an established credit history. The Authority's financial risk management objectives

and policies are detailed below:

i) Credit risk

The Authority has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay

amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks,

as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments. Management

assesses the credit quality ofeach customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience

and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on intemal or extemal assessment in accordance

with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net

of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Authority's management based on prior

experience and their assessment of the current economic environment.

Deficit for the year before tax (24,200,164) (19,974,094)

Adjusted for:
Depreciation 7,280,2s6 6,807,1 l 8

Contribution to provisions 1,928,886 (2,682,063)

Working capital adjustments

Increase in receivables (12,07s,000) 0

Increase in deferred income (1,292,642) 1,316,068

Increase in payables 3,429,829 I ,9s4,9 r 0

Net cash flow from operating sctivities (24,928,835) (12,937,623)
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Financial Risk Management

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the

Authority's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral

obtained is made up as follows:

Financial Risk Management

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue trading.

The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible

amounts that the Authority has recognised in the financial statements is considered adequate to cover

any potentially inecoverable amounts. The Authority has significant concentration of credit risk on

amounts due from parent ministry. The board of directors sets the Authority's credit policies and

objectives and lays down parameters within which the various aspects ofcredit risk managemenl are

operated.

iD Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Authority's directors, who have

built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Authority's

short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Authority

manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows. The table

below represents cash flows payable by the Authority under non-derivative financial liabilities by
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As at 30th June 2023

Receivables from exchange

transactrons
0 0 U 0

0
Receivables from non-exchange

transactions
12,075,000 12,075,000 0

7,558,817 7,558,817 0 nBank balances

r9,633,8r7 19,633,817 0 0Total
As at 30 June 2022

0
Receivables from exchange

transactrons
0 0 0

0 0 0 0
Receivables from non-exchange

transactions

34,748,138 0 0Bank balances 34,748,138

34,748,138 0 0Total 34,748,138
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their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are

the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying

balances, as the impact ofdiscounting is not significant.

Financial Risk Management

iii) Market risk

The Authority has put in place an intemal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the

Authority on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the desigrr and effectiveness of its intemal

accounting and operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices,

such as interest rate, equity prices and foreigr exchange rates which will affect the Authority's

income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management

is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the

retum. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management

Committee. The Authority's Strategy and Planning department is responsible for the development

of detailed risk management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management

Committee) and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies. There has been no change to

the Authority's exposure to market risks or the way it manages and measures the risk.

As at 30th June 2023

Trade payables l ))) 71< n ))) 'l"t<

Current portion of borrowings

Provisions 5,220,890 5,220,890

Deferred income n 0

Employee benefit obligation

Total 9,443,225 9,443,225

As at 30rh Jrune 2022

Trade payables 462,506 300,000 792,s06

Current portion of borrowings

Provisions 3,262,063 3,262,063

Deferred income 1,292,642 1,292,642

Employee benefit obligation

Total 5,017,211 300,000 s,3l7,2ll
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a) Foreign currency risk

The Authority has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of

goods and services that are done in cunencies other than the local currency. Invoices denominated

in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date ofthe invoice and conversion at the time

of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate. The Authority manages foreign exchange

risk form future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities by projecting for

expected sales proceeds and matching the same with expected payments.

Financial Risk Management

Financial Risk Management

The carrying amount ofthe Authority's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary

liabilities at the end ofthe reporting period are as follows:

2022-2023

As at 30th June 2023

Financial Assets

lnvestments

7,558,8 r 7 7,558,81 7Cash

Debtors

Total Financial Assets 7,55 8,817 7,558,81 7

Financiel Liebilities

Trade And Other Payables 4,222,335 4,222,335

Borrowings

Total Financial Liabilities 4,222335 4,222,335

Net Foreign Currency Asset/(Liability) 3,336,482 3,336,482
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Financial Risk Management

Capital Risk Mrnagement

The objective of the Authority's capital risk management is to safeguard the Entity's ability to

continue as a going concem. The Authority capital structue comprises of the following funds:

27. Related Party Disclosures

Nature of related oarty relationshios

Entities and other parties related to the Authority include those parties who have ability to exercise

control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related parties

include management personnel, their associates and close family members.

Reserves 30,282,003 30,282,003

Retained Earnings t3,266,029 37,446,193

Capital Reserve

Total Funds 43,548,032 67,72E,196

Total Bonowings

Less: Cash and Bank Balances (7,ss8,817) (34,748,138)

Net Debt/(Excess Cash And Cash Equivalents) (7.ss 8,81 7) (34,748,138)

Gearing t7% 5t%
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Government of Kenva

The Govemment of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Authority, holding 100% of the

Authority's equity interest. The Govemment of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long+erm

lenders of the Entity, both domestic and extemal.

Other related narties include:

i) Ministry of Agriculture

iD Key management.

iii) Board of directors.

Transactions with related parties

a) Sales to related parties

Sales ofelectricity to govt agencies

Rent income from govt. Agencies

Water sales to golt. Agencies

Others

Total

B) purchases from related parties

Purchases of electricity from KPLC

Purchase of water from gol't service providers

Rent expenses paid to gort agencies (NACOSTI &
Kenya Ports Authority) 8,204,526 9,1 33,65 5

Training and conference fees paid to govt. Agencies

Others

Total 8,204,526 9,133,655

b) Grants /transfers from the government

Grans from national govt 144,900,000 144,900,000

Grants from county government

Donations in kind

Total 144,900,000 144,900,000

c) Expenses incurred on behalf of related party

Payments of salaries and wages for employees

Payments for goods and services

Total

d) Key management compensation

13,979,4s5 9,424,219Directors' emoluments

Compensation to key management 18,938,149 10,577,220

Total 32,917,604 20,001,439
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28. Regerves

The Reserves of IGh 30,282,003 relates to the capital injection in relation to assets that were

transferred to the Authority from the Parent Ministry at inception.

29. Events after the Reporting Period

Thcre were no matcrial adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period"

30. Ultimste And Holdtng Entity

The Authority is a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the Ministry of Agriculture. Its

ultimate parent is the Govemment of Kenya.

31. Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) rounded to the nearest Kshs.
i

i

i

I

I

i

l

i
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20. Appendices

Appendix 1: Implementation Status of Auditor-General's Recommendations

The following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor.

Not
Resolved

awaiting
concurTence

with the

Offrce of
Auditor
General

FtY 2023t24

During the

Audit
exercise for
FY 2022123

The Management provided an explanation
of the amount of Kshs.54,068,818 which
was cash carried forward at the end of the
financial year 202012021 to cater for the
trade payables which had not been paid by
the end of the financial year.

The differences in the cashflow statement
and the statement ofcomparison ofbudget
and actuals was due to the items which
were accrued at the end of the financial
year which had to be reported in the
budget comparison statement but the same

could not be reflected in the statement of
cashflows since they did not involve
movemenl of cash during the year.

The Authority is committed to make
payments when they fall due and make

1.0

Inlccuracies in the Statement of Comparison of
Budget and Actual Amounts
The statements of comparison of budget and actual

amounts revealed the following misstatements: -

i. The statement of comparison of budget and actual

amounts includes an amount of Kshs.54,068,818

disclosed as cash carried forward.

ii. The reconciliation statement of actual amounts on a

comparable basis and actual amounts in the financial

slatements was not prepared as required by Paragraph 47

(b) of the Intemational Public Sector Accounting

Standards (IPSAS 24); and,

iii. The statement of comparison of budget and actual

amounts when compared with the statement of cash

flows had unreconciled items on operating activities as

detailed below;
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In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of
the statement of comparison of budget and actual

amounts could not be confirmed.

Payments UnreconciledCashflow
Statement

580,00064,734,479 65,314,479

Employee 2,102,06380,371,296 82,471,359

2,452,71312,802,889 10,350,176

(Ksh)

Costs

Amount
(Ksh)

Statement

of
Comparison

ofBudget
and Actuals
(Ksh)

Use of
Goods

and

Services

Project

Expenses

disclosures of any pending bills at the end
of the financial year.
Disclosure notes between the differences
between the cashflow statement and the
statement of comparison of budget and
actuals will has also been enhanced in the
current financial year financial statements.

2.0

Unconfirmed Cash and Cash Equivalents Balances

The statement offinancial position reflects cash and cash

equivalents balance of Kshs .33,741,165 as disclosed in
Note 17 to the financial statements. This balance

All the inward swift transfers for the GMO
services through the KENTRADE
platform are currently been recorded in the
cashbook.

Resolved FY 2022123
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The Authority was able to resolve the

matter in totality by having the NBA team

monitoring all the applications through the

platform.

excludes an unreconciled amount of Kshs.1,006,973

comprising of receipts in form of inward swift transfers

that were credited to the Authority's bank account but

had not been recorded in the cashbook. Out of the

balance of Kshs.1,006,973, an amount of Kshs.l23,500
was banked during the year leaving a balance of
Kshs.883,473. Management has explained that the

matter is being pursued with the bank to ensure the long

outstanding cash entries are resolved.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of
the cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.33,741,165 could not be confirmed.

FY
2023/2024

Due to the budgetary constraints, the
Authority has not managed to revalue its
property, plant and equipment especially
the vehicles which are still in use but fully
depreciated.
The Authority during the financial year

revised its Financial Policies and

Procedures Manual to align the policies to

the guidelines on revaluation of assets.

With the Manual in place, the

Not
Resolved

due to

budgetary

constraints

3.0 Lack of Revaluation and Policy on Property, Plant
and Equipment
The stalement of financial position reflects property,

plant and equipment balance of Kshs.41,749,893 as

disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements.

However, the Authority did not review the residual

values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment

at the reporting date in accordance with Paragraph 67 of
the Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards
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(IPSAS) 17 as property, plant and equipment with a

gross carrying amount of Kshs .18,201,325 had a zero-

net carrying amount while still being in use.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of
the property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.41,749,893 could not be confirmed.

Management will revise the useful lives
(ULs) and the residual value (RVs) of the

assets as required. Management noted the

recommendation and will ensure the same

is implemented.

4.0 Unsupported Additional Charge to Retained
Earnings
The statement ofchanges in net assets reflects additional
charge to retained eamings of Kshs.6,086,452 which was

not supported by relevant documentation and

explanatory Notes to the financial statements.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of
the additional charge to retained eamings amount of
Kshs.6,086,452 could not be confirmed.

The additional charge was necessitated by
funds that were received from a partner
towards the end of the financial year
201912020 for the construction of the
laboratory. The funds were not fully
absorbed within the financial year
resulting in an abnormal surplus during the
year. The sarne was moved to the
statement of changes in the net assets to
adjust the surplus.
The Authority will restate the financial
statements for the FY 201912020 after
discussions with the Office of the Auditor
General during the audit exercise for FY
2022t2023.

Not
Resolved

awaiting

concurTence

with the

Office of
Auditor
General

FtY 2023/24

During the

Audit
exercise for
FY 2022123

5.0 Unconfi rmed Deferred Income Movement Management provided an explanation of
the movement of the defened income in

Not
Resolved

Flv 2023/24

During the

53



NATIONAL BIOSAFETY AUTHORITY
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2023,

The statement of hnancial position reflects deferred

income of Kshs.l,292,642 as disclosed in Note 22 to the

financial statements. Included in this balance are

additions of Kshs.S,120,862 and transfers to the income

statemenl of Kshs.9,436,927. However, their movement

were not reflected in the statement of financial
performance.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of
deferred income balance of Kshs.1,292,642 could not be

confirmed.

the draft audit report indicating that The

deferred income was computed by taking

into account the opening balance from the

previous financial year, income received

from the development partners less

expenses incurred in relation to the funded

projects. The charge of Kshs.9,436,927

was included in the statement of financial
performance under the sub item project

expenses.

Management will follow up with the

Office ofthe Auditor General to ensure the

matter is resolved during the current

financial year audit exercise.

awaiting
conclurence

with the

Office of
Auditor
General

Audit
exercise for
FY 2022/23

6.0 Unsupported Reserves

The statement of financial position reflects a reserves

balance of Kshs.30,282,003 which was not supported by

a disclosure note to the financial statements. Further, the

reserve balance was not supported by relevant

documentation, schedules and explanatory notes to the

financial statements. In addition, the accounting policy

The amount has since been carried
forward over time in the books ofaccounts
of the Authority since inception. The
management sought guidance on how to
resolve the reserves balance of Ksh.
30,282,003.

Not
Resolved

awaiting
conculTence

with the

Office of

FtY 2023t24
During the

Audit
exercise for
FY 2022123
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Guidance Notes:

(i) Use the same reference numbers as contained in the external audit report;

(ii) Obtain the "lssue/Observation" and "management comments", required above, from final extemal audit report that is signed by

Management;

(iii) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point persons within your Entity responsible for

implementation of each issue;

(iv) Indica the status solved" or'Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this report to National Treasury.

,

CHIEF EXECUTI OT'FICER
Date...

disclosed in Note 4(i) does not specifu the reserves

maintained and the accounting policies adopted as

required by Paragraph 95 (c) of the Intemational Public
Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS l) on the
presentation of financial statements.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of
the reserves balance of Kshs.30,282,003 could not be

confirmed.

Auditor
General

NATIONAL BIOSAFETY AUTHORITY
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Appendix II: Projects implemented by National Biosafety Authority

Projects implemented by the State Corporation/ SAGA Funded by development partners and/ or the Govemment.
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Appendix IV: Transfers from Other Government Entities

IFPRI
0t .08.2022

Donor

Support I 5 5095l l,55 I,509 1,55 r,s09

IFPRI
08.o8.2022

Donor

Support 1,351,756 1,351,756 1,351,756

Ministry of
Education 3t.08.2022 Recurrenl 12,075,000 10,821,487 |,253,513 12,075,000

Ministry of
Education

02.09.2022 Recurrent 12,075,000 12,075,000 12,075,000

Ministry of
Education

0s.09.2022 Recurrent 12,075,000 12,075,000 12,07s,000

UNEP GEF
11.t02022

Donor

Support 1,084,500 r,084,500 r,084,500

Ministry of
Education

13.12.2022 Recurrent 36,22s,000 36,225,000 36,225,000
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1,448,172

IFPRI
16.0t.2023

Donor
Support 1,448,172 I,448,t72

t,453,897
IFPRI

07.02.2023

Donor

Support 1,453,E97 I 897453

36,225,000

Ministry of
Education

t4.04.2023 Recurrent 36,225,000 36,225,000

22.05.2023

Donor

Support t,605,728 1,605,128 1,605,728
IFPRI

Ministry of
Agriculture

06.06.2023 Recurrent 12,075,000 12,075,000 12,075,000

12,075,000 12,075,000 t2,075,000

Ministry of
Agriculture

09.06.2023 Recurrent

t4t)20562 140,067,049 lls3,sl3 14r320562Tolal
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Appendix V- Inter-Entity Confirmation Irtte r

Natio nal B iosafely A a h odty
Box 2E2 5 I-001 00 Nairobi

The National Biosafety Authority wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 30s June 2023 as indicated in the table below. Please compare the
amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the column E in the table below Please sign and stamp this request in the space provided
and retum it to us.

Amounts DisbuBed by [SC/SAGAJFund] (KShs) as at 30th June (Cunent
FY)

Referenc€
Number

Date Disbursed Recurrent (A) Development (B) Inter-Ministerial
(c)

Total
(D)<A+B+C)

Amount Received by

[beneficiary Entity]
(KShs) as at 30s

June (Previous FY)
(E)

Differences
(KShs)

(F)<D-E)
N/A

Total

In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated.

Head ofAccountants department of beneficiary Entity:

Name ............. Sign ..................................Date
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Appendix VI: Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures
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Appendir VII: Reporting on Disaster Mansgement Expenditure

Programme Sub-
proglarnme

Disaster
Type

Category of disaster related Activity that
require expenditure reporting
(responsdrecovery/miti gation/preparedness)

Expenditure
item

Amount
(Kshs.)

Comments
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